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Agenda
Tax Abatement Committee

Tuesday, July 10, 2012 at 1:00 p.m.
Efrain Rosario Memorial Caucus Room

Room 204, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ

Please note:

1. (a) ROLLCALL:

(b) SALUTE TO THE FLAG:

(c) STATEMENT IN COMPLIANCE WITH SUNSHINE LAW:

2. PENDING APPLICATION:

1. The applicant, i i 0 First Street Urban Renewal, LLC; formerly Athena. BLDG i i 0 Urban

Renewal, L.L.C. (the "Applicant"), seeks to amend a ten(10) year tax abatement at the rate
of ten per cent (10%) of anual gross revenue for the construction of a thirt-five (35) story
mixed use rental building. When completed, the Project wil consist of four hundred fift-

two (452) residential unts, Sixteen thousand five hundred ninety-seven (16,597) square feet
of retail space and three hundred fort three (343) parking spaces.

City Clerk Robert Byrne stated on behalf of the Tax Exemption Committee: "In accordance
with the New Jersey P.L. 1975, Chapter 231 of the Open Public Meetings Act (Sunshine
Law), adequate notice of this meeting was provided by mail and/or fax to The Jersey
Journal and The Reporter on Friday, July 6, 2012 em 12:30 p.m.



Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce

Director's Office (l
Inter-Office Memorandum

DATE: July 6,2012

TO: Tax Abatement Committee

FROM: AI Cameron, Deputy Director, HEDC

SUBJECT: Tax Abatement Committee Agenda July 10, 2012

CC: R. Byrne, S. Harold, R. McFadden, J. Monahan, K. Tayari, D. Toon

AGENDA
A Tax Abatement Meeting wil be held on Tuesday July 10, 2012, 1 :00 PM in the City
Council Caucus Room, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey.

The applicant,110 First Street Urban Renewal, LLC; formerly Athena BLDG
110 Urban Renewal, L.L.C. (the "Applicant"), seeks to amend a ten(10) year tax
abatement at the rate of ten per cent (10%) of annual gross revenue for the
construction of a thirt-five (35) story mixed use rental building. When
completed, the Project wil consist of four hundred fift-two (452) residential
units, Sixteen thousand five hundred ninety-seven (16,597) square feet of
retail space and three hundred fort three (343) parking spaces.

The Jersey City Council approved a ten (10) year ten percent (10%) tax
abatement that wil expire in 2022. The applicant is requesting that be
extended to fourteen (14) years from the date of City Council approval of an
amendment to the existing amendment. The applicant has also proposed that
the existing requirement to provide twenty-five (25) affordable dwellng units
on site be reduced to ten (10) in exchange for an additional contribution to the
Affordable Housing Trust Fund~

Next Scheduled Meetings: September 13, 2012, October 25, 2012,
December 20,2012



WATERS, MCPHERSON, McNEILL
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

DIRECT DIAL

SECAUCUS' TRENTON - NEW YORK

MEADOWLANDS OFFICE
300 LIGHTING WAY

P.O, Box 1560
SECAUCUS, NEW JERSEY 07096

201-863-4400
www.lawwmm.com

E-MAIL

jragno~lawwmm.com

FAX

201-863-2866

JOSEPH G. RAGNO

201-330-7465

July 5, 2012

Al Cameron
Deparment of Housing & Economic
Development & Commerce
30 Montgomery Street
Jersey City, N.J. 07302

RE: 110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC
Application for Amendment to Financial Agreement

Dear Mr. Cameron:

Enclosed please find original and twenty-one (21) copies of Application to Amend
Financial Agreement for the project known as 110 First Street. Also enclosed is our check for
$9,000 to cover the filing fee.

Very truly yours,

WATERS, McPHERSON, McNEILL, P.C.

JGR/pm
Enclosures

708750
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WATERS, MCPHERSON, McNEILL
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW
SECAUCUS - TRENTON. NEW YORK

DIRECT DIAL

MEADOWLANDS OFFICE
300 LIGHTING WAY

P.O. Box 1560
SECAUCUS, NEW JERSEY 07096

201-863-4400
www.lawwmm.com

E-MAiL

jragno~lawwmm.com

FAX

201-863.2866

JOSEPH G. RAGNO

201-330-7465

July 5, 2012

HAND DELIVERED
Honorable Jerramiah T. Healy, Mayor
City of Jersey City
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, N.J. 07302

Re: 110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC

Application for Amendment to Financial Agreement

Dear Mayor Healy:

On behalf of 110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC ("Applicant"), we submit
for your consideration this letter-application to amend the Financial Agreement entered into
between Applicant and the City of Jersey City dated June 17,2008. The basis for the application
is as set forth below.

A. The History of the Tax Abatement-

In March 14, 2008, Applicant (formerly known as Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal,
LLC) filed an application for tax abatement under the "Long Term Tax Exemption Law";
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. ("LTTE Law") for an urban renewal project described as a 35 story,
452 unt residential rental building with 16,597 sf of retail space and a 154,578 sf 343 space
parking facility (the "Project") to be constructed on a .7254 acre parcel identified as Block
11603, Lot 42 (formerly designated as Block 109, Lot WA) on the Official Tax Map of the City
of Jersey City, New Jersey and commonly known as 110 First Street in a redevelopment plan
area curently known as the Powerhouse Ars Redevelopment Plan Area (the "Project Site").

Preliminar Major Site Plan Approval was obtained on January 29,2008 (See Resolution

of Planng Board #P07-157 and Site Plan attached as Exhibit A).

At its May 28, 2008 regular meeting, the City Council adopted Ordinance 08-074

approving the application and authorizing the City to enter into a Financial Agreement with the
Applicant providing for a term of the earlier of ten (10) years from the date of substantial
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completion or foureen (14) years from the date of approval, May 28, 2008 and calling for an
Anual Service Charge in lieu of real estate taxes on the Project improvements of ten percent
(10%) of the Anual Gross Revenue from the Project (the "Financial Agreement"). The
Financial Agreement, which was executed by the paries on June 17,2008 fuher provided that,
pursuant to a certain Consent Order entered into by the City and the Applicant, the Applicant had
agreed, in fulfillment of its affordable housing obligation, to set aside 25 units on-site as

Affordable Dwellng Units ("ADUs") and in addition to pay $2,500,000 to subsidize 25 Choice
Program Units off-site in the project known as Summit Heights. The affordable housing
obligation for this Project was previously negotiated between the City the the Applicant and
incorporated into a Settlement Consent Order entered in the matter entitled New Gold Equities
Corp. and BLDG Management Company, Inc. v. City of Jersey City, et aI., Docket #05-cv-
03561-DRD-SDW (the "SCO"). The $2,500,000 affordable housing contribution was paid in
full. In addition, the City required the Applicant to enter into a Prepayment Agreement dated
June 1 7,2008 by which the Applicant was obligated to prepay $1,000,000 ofthe Anual Service
Charges due under the Financial Agreement (the "Prepayment Agreement"). Since construction
was never stared, the prepayment was never made. See Financial Agreement with Exhbits and
Prepayment Agreement attached as Exhibits B and C. Finally, the applicant agreed to enter into
a Project Labor Agreement.

On September 18, 2008, a Certificate of Amendment, duly approved by the Deparment
of Community Affairs was filed with the Office of the State Treasurer changing the name. of the
Applicant urban renewal entity from Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC to 110 First Street
Urban Renewal Associates, LLC to reflect the restructuring of the entity. See Original
Certificate of Formation for Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC, Exhibit D, Certificate of
Amendment (Name Change), Exhbit E and Letter Dated June 15, 2009 notifying the City of
Jersey City ofthe amendment, Exhibit F and Ownership Disclosure Statement. Exhibit G.

B. The Need to Amend the FinancialAgreement-

In the wake of the formal approval of the tax abatement for the 110 First Street Project,
the recession plunged the real estate market into a major crisis. Financing sources dried up,

constrction on the Project was, as a consequence, never commence. Since 2008, the owner of
the Project Site has been searching for a suitable joint venture parner to enable it to get the
Project started. The requested amendments wil make it possible to bring a joint venture parner
into the Project.

The key areas ofthe Financial Agreement requiring amendment are:

1. Affordable Housing Contribution- The City's current need for funds to subsidize
affordable residential projects elsewhere in the City would provide the Applicant
with the o:pportuinty to make a one-time payment of $750,000 to the Affordable
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Housing Trust Fund in addition to the $2,500,000 paid in 2008 and bringing the
Applicant's total contribution to $3,250,000 (more than $7,300/per market rate
unit to be developed on-site as contrasted with the standard contribution of

$1500/unt). In consideration for the additional contribution, the Applicant's
obligation to set-aside 25 ADUs on-site would be amended to 10. Apart from the
amendment of the Financial Agreement, the SCO provisions establishing the
obligation would also require amendment.

2. Term of Financial Agreernent- Given that economic conditions since the 2008
approval have not been conducive to beginning construction on the Project, nearly
four years of the foureen (14) year outside term of the Financial Agreementhave
expired. Assuming Project construction could commence before the end of 2012
and finish by the end of 2015, unless the Financial Agreement is amended to

reset the term, the Project wil only receive the benefit of the abatement for seven
years at most, whereas all of the investment and financing decisions are premised
on a full 10 year term.

3. Prepayment- The prepayment obligation, requiring the outlay of $1 millon three
years before Project completion is a discouraging factor for prospective joint
ventue parners and lenders alike. Since, construction wil star within 180 days
if the amendments which are the subject of this Application are approved, a
prepayment wil not be necessary. Nevertheless, the Appellant would agree to
pay the interest which has accrued under the Prepayment Agreement now
estimated at $240,000.

C. The Proposed Amendments-

The proposed amendments to the Financial Agreement are as follows:

1. Term- Section 3.1 of the Financial Agreement would be amended to restate the
term of the abatement as "the earlier of ten (10) years from the date of the
Substantial Completion of the Proj ect or foureen (14) years from the date of the
approval of the Ordinance authorizing the execution of the Amended Financial
Agreement on the condition that construction begins within 180 days of the last
to occur of 1) the execution of the Amended Financial Agreement or 2) the
execution of the amendments to the affordable housing provisions of the SCO.
The Anual Service Charge would be 10% of Anual Gross Revenue.

2. Affordable Housing Contribution- Section 4.6 of the Financial Agreement would
be amended to reflect that the Applicant would make an additional contribution
to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund in the amount of $750,000 in lieu of the
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set-aside of 15 ADDs on-site and in addition to the $2,500,000 contribution for
the 25 units in the. Summit Heights project paid in 2008. The Financial
Agreement would reflect Applicant's obligation to set aside 10 ADDs on-site.
The SCO would likewise be amended to reflect the necessary modification in
Applicant's obligation.

3. Prepayment Agreement- The Prepayment Agreement dated June 17, 2008 would
be cancelled conditioned on Applicant's agreement to pay all interest which has
accrued thereunder. Applicant would not be obligated to enter into a new
prepayment agreement in connection with the Amended Financial Agreement.

4. Construction Period- The Amended Financial Agreement wil require the
Applicant to begin construction within 180 days of the last to occur of a) the
execution of the Amended Financial Agreement or b) the execution of the
amendment of the affordable housing provisions of the SCO. Failure to begin
construction on time wil result in reversion to the original abatement term as
stated in the 2008 Financial Agreement. Construction Schedule, Exhbit H.

D. Impact of Amendments-

. Resetting the commencement of the term of the Financial Agreement wil

have a salutary impact for the City as it wil enable the Project to be

constructed in the near-term and wil ensure that the completed Project
wil enjoy ten full years of tax abatement.

. The $750,000 additional contribution to the Affordable Housing Trust
Fund will give the City the flexibility to apply the funds where they are
most needed. While at the same time, the Applicant's agreement to set
aside 10 ADDs on-site is a significant achievement which is without
recent precedent on the Jersey City Waterfront.

. The elimination of the prepayment obligation conditioned on the payment

of the accrued interest contributes to the overall viability ofthe Project and
. ensures that construction on this long under-utilized development site will
commence in 2012.

. Construction Schedule- The Applicant's commitment to a 180 day
construction star (from execution of Amended Financial Agreement and
SCO amendment) means that the City could begin to realize the benefits
of the Project in the first quarer of2013.
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. Jobs Creation - The construction of the Project wil result in the creation

of 300 construction jobs and 15 new permanent jobs on completion. The
Applicant is committed to entering into a Project Labor Agreement.

· Revenue Generation - Based on the Good Faith Lease Estimates attached
as Exhibit I, the Applicant Projects that the Project wil generate in the
first year following substantial completion and stabilization Anual
Service Charges of approximately $1,491,198 and over $17,094,915 over
the ten (10) year term. In contrast, the undeveloped Project Site generated
just $110,726.40 in conventional taxes in 2011. See Estimated Anual
Service Charge Schedule, Exhibit J and Estimated Financial Plan, Exhibit
K.

A proposed form of Amended Financial Agreement is attached as Exhibit L.

110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC respectfully requests that this
Application be considered by the Tax Enhancement Committee at a Special Meeting in July. We
are available to meet with your staff on short notice to address any concerns which may arise
regarding this application

Respectfully submitted,

WATERS, Jy

//
By:

JGR/pm
Enclosures

cc: Councilman Michael Sottolano

Al Cameron
Robert Byrne, City Clerk
Joane Monahan, Assistant Corporation Counsel
Wiliam Matsikoudis, Corporation Counsel
Donald Olenick, Esq.
John Smallwood
Kenneth G. Browne

697973.7
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.RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING BOARD OF Tt-il

CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ApPLICANT: ATHENA BUILDlNO URBAN RLN£WAL. LLC

PROpaRTY: 110 FIRST STREET

Bi.OCK J 09 LOT W.A /i
FOR: PRELIMINARY MAJOR SITE PLAN ApPROVAL

CAse No, P07 -157

HEARING DA TE: JANUM. Y 29,2008

HESULT: ApPROVED

WHEREAS, the Applicant, Athena BuiIdlng Urban Renewal, LLC, (hereinafter, .
"Applicant") has made appHcatìnl1 to the Plaruiing Board of the City of Jersey City, County of

Hudson and State of New Jersôy foJ' preliminary major site plan approvali filed unclei' case no.

P07-157, involving the constructioii of a 452 dwellng unit residential high rise building with 343

parking spaces Mid 13,970 sq. ft. of retail, located at Block 109, Lot W.A, 00' propert mOre

commonly known as 1 i 0 First Sireet (hereinafter "Property"); and

WHEREAS, Applicant is the owner ofPJ'pel't)(; and

WHEREAS, it appears that due notice of a hearing of the above-described Applica.tion,

before the Board, on Tnesday, /-29-08, at 5:30 PM, \"/as duly published, as prescribed in the

zoning ordinance of the City of Jersey Cíty; and

.. ~ ~



WHEREASi Applicant has S"ubmitted pl'of that he has complied with applicable

pl'cedurall'equil'cments, including public notice nnd the payment of fees; !Hid

WHEREAS, the Boai'd formally hns heard and considered the evidence presented by

Applicant in SUPPOI't of the within application, including the sworn testimony of his witnesses,

the comments and recommendations of Plaiuúng Staff and the comlUe.nts of interested members

ofthe public; and

WHEREAS, having considered the within application. all SUPPOliìng documents, the

sworn testimony iii support of the application, the comments al1d recommendations of Planning

Stuff and the comments of interested members of the public, the Planníng Board of the City of

Jersey Cit)' hereby makes the following findings of fact and conclusions thereon:

FINDINGS OF F ACr

1. Applicant has applied to the Board for preliminary and final major

site plan approval, involving the oolistl'ctjon of a 452 dwellng unit i'esideiitial

high - rise building, with 343 parking spaces and 13.970 sq. feet of retail. located

at Block 109, Lot W.A, on Property more commonly known as i I() First Street.

2. AppLicant is the owner of Propert.

3. PrOpe11)' is located within the Powerhouse Arts Redevelopment

Plan Area.

4, The PrQPorty in question was the sii~ject of litigation in the V,S.

District Couit for the District of New Jel'.'~ey, captioned New Gord Equities Corp.,

et ali \' CIty of Jersey City, et aI, Docket .No. 05 - CV - 0356J - DRD - SDW,

which case also incorporated severa! ~illilal' lawsuIts that had been pending in the

Superior Court of New Jersey, Law Division - Hudson County.

.. . .



5. The above - referenced inatters were resolved by ii consent order

fOi' tJie consolidation of all state tlctions, fiMI settlement, injunction. and dismissal

of all actions with prejudice, which consenl order was finalized us to all issties

and all palties as of 7"21 w06,

6. Pursuant to the teims and conditions of the con:;ent order, the

Applicant and the City of Jersey City entered into a consent agl'eement to change

certain details of the original development proposal, which conseiit agreement is

dnted 12-20"07.

7. Pursuant to the terms and conditons of the i 2"20-07 consent

agreement. the total unit count allowable thereunder is 452 tmils in a stn.ict1.re not

to exceed 350 feet

8. The above..referenced consent order required an affol'dabJe

housIng contl"buOon b)' Applicant for one (I) aftOl'dHbJe hovsing unit fol' evel'~'

iline (9) market-rate units iii the development. The consent order ful'hel' required

that oiie...half (1/2) of those affordable housing units be provided by Applicant

on-site and that the otbei' ol1e~half (112) be provided 101' off-sit!; through a

financial contribution by Applicant to tI1e City.

9, TIie witlùn Application is consistent with the affordable housing

contribution requi.rements of the consent order. More specificallyl Applicant shall

provide said i'equireinents herein as foHows:

One-half (1/2) of the required affordable housing units

shall be pi'úvided by Applicant on site.



One-half (112) of the required affoi'dable housing units

shall be satisfied by a financial contl'ílmtion by Applkam to

the City of Jersey City, totaling $2~500,OOO.OO, as follows:

$ i ,2501000,00 shall be paid by Applicant upon

apPloval of (he within preliminary nia;ol" site plan

Application

$1,250,000.00 shall be paid by Applicant upon

eithcl acquisition by the Jersey City Redevelopmellt

Agency .of additional parcels of lands herein or

Applicant herein moving forward to obtain building

permits fol' the within development, whichever

occurs fi r~1

10, The above-l'eferenced affordable housing obligations are

refcrencedi if not fully set forthi it~ the Meinoranduiri of Understanding as to

oftiite affordable housing contributions. between Applicant and the Cit~1 of Jersey

City. whiçh Memorandum is incorporated herein and made a part hereof by

reference.

11. The within Application is consistent with the above - stated terms

and conditions of the above--refcrenced 12~20-07 consent agreement.

12, The Application seeks approval for prefiminal'Y inajoi' site plan tha(

conforms witb and (0 the requirements of the Powerhouse Arts Redevelopment

Plan, as affected by the terOlS and conditons of the above-referenced consent

older ai'\d conse1l agreement, As siich, the within Application advances tJie goals



of the Powerhouse Arts Redevelopment Plan and is an appropriate development

of the property that wil benefit the immediate neighborhood and promote the

general welfale. The pl'posed development will promote a desirable visual.

envil'l1nent that wil acid to the quality and chal'acter of the area and is an

appropriate use of the land.

13. The Board heard from the following sworn witnesses for

Applicant:

Peter DeWitt, ALA, a licensed architect in New Jei'sey, who

testified as to various design and other architectural

elements of th~ Plan

KClU1etli Browne, a principal with Applicant, who testified

as to varioiis elements of the appl ¡cation, inchiding but not

limited to the parking garage and the ventilation system

the/'eil)

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RFnSOLVED that the Planning Board of tbe City of

Jersey City, CO,luty of Hudson and State of New Jersey, fol' the foregoing reasons. as well as

those reasons stated on the record herein, which reasons are inColl1orated herein by l'fereiice.

tliat the within application for preliminary majol' site plan approval, fied under case no. P()~ 157,

involving the construction of a 452 dweIUng unit l'esidel1tial hígh - 1'se building, with 343

parking spaces and 131970 sq. ft. of tetaìli located at Block 109, Lot W.A, on Property more

commonly Icown as i 10 First Street, hereby is approved, subject 10 the following C01lditions:

A) The Applicant wil provide two documents ,to the Planning

Department fot' supplement to tbe file. One is ii signed



MeinoJ'andum of Understailcüng regarding the offsite Affordable

Housing contiibntioii:'. and the other is a letter countersigned by

Corporation Counsel amending the provisions of the Settlement

Agreement which controls the development of this site;

B) The Applicant shall evalu.ate the issue ofihe practicability ofushig

the existing dog run which servÍces the ItA Building" adjacent to

tbis Property should the building allow pets in order to inìnitnize

the impact of addItiomil dogs in nearby public parks;

C) The AppHc.lUL shall track the LEED points to ihe building;

D) The Applicant shall comply with the conlhients and conditions of

all Jersey City review agenc.ies and .departments:

E) The IlFir~t Streei dl'op,""ft" is excluded fi'orn the approval of the

Site Plan and is elíminated from the present design of the building.

Should the Applicant wish to pursue'the btiílding design with the

"First Street drop - off' the Applicant will follow the pl'cedme

for an amended sIte plan approval, after having secured a franchise

ordinance from the City COllncH;

F) The Applicant agrees that no construction wil OCCUI' withoiit

permits for the work, nor wil any construction occur on Saturdays

or .afer..hours. without special permíts permitting construction

outside of the norm; and

G) The Applicani agrees to have signed pltms on site during

construction. . '1. L I' " / ." . Á,. ........ l-
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RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNG BOARD OF THE

CITY OF JERSEY CrTY

1

In ùie Matter of the Application of Athena Building Ul'baii Rene\,,'al, LLC foi' preliminary i

major site plan approval on PropeI'ty known as I i 0 Pii'st Street, Block 109, Lot W.A

A motion to appi'ove rhe application was approved b)i the fòllowing vote:

COMMISSIONER: AYE l: AnsT.AII\
Leon Yost x

Vice-Chairman

Knren McIntyre x

ìvfike Jenner x

Mike Sims x

Roseanna Petruzzell .X

Michael Ryan
Chairman

x

~".-... ............. .. '..,/~. "t- ._~-~ .--~.-.~~J ...,
ApPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

ROBERT D. C01i'P.R; SECRETARY

DAn: PROPOSAL ApPROVED: JANUARY 29, ;2008

'- -f -Og-

DATE PROPOSAL MEMORIALIZ.ED: MNJ lAR" 29, 2.o0å
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EXHITB



Rev. 8.23.05

Long Tenn Tax Exemption
NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1t et seq.
(Maret Rate Residential Rental).

Re: Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, ii
Approxiately .73 Acres

Block 109, LotWA
Powerhouse Ars Redevelopm.ent Plan

PREAMBLE

TilS FINANCIA AGREEMENT, (Agreement) is made the 17th day 
of June ,

2008 by and between ATHENA BLDG 110 URBAN REWAL, LLC, an urban renewal

entity. formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplementedt N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-1 et seq., having its

. principal office at c/o The Athena Group, 712 Fifth Avenue, Eighth Floort :New York, NY 10019

(EntitY)t and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New

Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey CitYt New Jersey 07302 (City).

RECITALS

WITNESSETH:
WHREAS, the Entity is the Owner of certain propert designated as Block 109, Lot

W A, more commonly known by the street address of 110 First Street, and m.ore paricularly

d.escribed by the metes and bounds description set fort as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and

WHREAS, this propery is located withi the boundares of the Powerhouse Ars

Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to constrct a 35 story building, containing approximately

452 residential rental units, approxitely 16,597 square feet of retai space and 343 parking

spaces for the use of the residents and retail customers only, (Project); and

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2008, the Entity fied an Application with the City for a long

term tax exemption for the Project; and

WHREAS, the City made the following findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1



1. the cllent real estate tax generates revenue of only $87,674, whereas, the

Annual Service charge as estiated, and wil generate revenue to the City

of approximately $1,585,212;

2. the Entity has agreed, as par of its stipulation of settlement and consent

orcler in the matter entitled New Gold Equities Corp., and BLDG
Management Co., Inc., vs. City of Jersey .city, et aI, Docket No. 05"cv-
03561-DRD-SDW (Consent Orderl, to set aside 25 units on-site as
Mfordable Dwellng Units and pay $2,500,000 to subsidie 25 units of
Choice Program off-site at the Sunt Heights Project, which obligatons
were intended to subsume any other Affordable Housing obligations
imposed by the City of Jersey City, specifically those set fort in Section
304-28 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;

3. in view of the uniqueness of the Project and the complex litigation and

negotiated settlement, the City hereby agrees to waive payment of the
$665,39(5 to the City's Affordable Housing Trst Fund as required by
Section 304-28 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;

4. it is expected that the Project wil create approximately 300 jobs dunng

construction and 15 new permnent jobs;

5. the Project should stabilze and contrbute to the economic growth of

existing local business and to the creation of new business, which cater to
the new residents;

6. the Project wil furher the redvelopment objectives of the Powerhouse

Ars Redevelopment Plan;

7. the City's impact analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk.

indicates that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the Cíty~ and

B. Assessment of the hnportanee of the Tax Exemption in obtaig development of

the Project and inuencing the Ioeational decisions of probable occupants:
1. the relative stabilty and predictabilty of the annual service charges wil

make the Project more attactive to investors and lenders needed to
fiance the Project; and

2. the relative stabilty and predctabilty of the service charges wil allow the

owner to stabilze its operating budget, alowing a high level of
maintenance to the building oVèr the lie of the Project, which wil insure
the likelihood of the success of the 'Project and insure that it wil have a
positive impact on the surrounding area; and .
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WHAS, by the adoption of Ordinance 08~074 on May 28th 1 2008, the Municipal

Council approved the above findings and the tax exemption Application and authoiized the

execution of ths Agreement;

NOW, THREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and

for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I .. GENERA PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Governing Law

Ths Agreement shall be governed by the provision oÎ the Long Term Tax Exemption

Law, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20~i et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor,

02-003, Ordinance 02-075. and Ordinance 08- 074. which authonzed the. execution of this

Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the

facts, data, and repi'esentations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in

granting this tax eXémption.

Section 1.2 General Defitions
Unless specifcally provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires. when used in

this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

1. Allowable Net rrofit- The amount arved at by applying the Allowable Profit

Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

ii. Allowable Profit Rate - The; greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arved

at by addig 1.25% to the annual intel'est percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial

permanent moitgage fiancing. If the initial pennanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a

governmental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or simlar charge, if payable on a per

annum basis, shall be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage

fiancing, or if the financing .is internal or undertaken by a related .pary, the Alowable Profit

Rate shal be the greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arved at by adding 1.25% per

annum to the interest rate pel' annum which the municipality determnes to be the prevailng rate

on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of

N.J,S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

W. Gross Revenue - Any and al revenue collected from the Project of whatever kind

or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from thid pares',
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including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, laundry, health club user

fees or other serices (such. as lease premiums for views, fireplaces, etc.). No deductions wì1 be

allowed for operatig or maintenance costs, including, but not limited to gas, electnc, water and

sewer, other utilties, garbage removal and inurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord,

tenant or a thrd pary, except for customar operatig expenses of commercial tenants such as

utilti~SI insurance and taxes (includig payments in lieu of taxes) which shall be deducted from.

Gross Revenue based on the actual amount of such costs incurred.

iv. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City for

municipal services supplied. to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taes on the

Improvements, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12.

v. Auditor's Repolt - A complete financial statement outlning the fiancial status of

the Project (for a period of time as .indicated by context), which shall also include a certication

of Total Project Cost and clear computation of Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor's Report

shall have been prepared in cononnty with generaly accepted accounting principles and shall

conta at a minimum the followin~:, a balance sheet, a statement of ìnC?me, a statement of

retained eargs or changes in stockholders' equity, a statement of cash flt?ws, descriptions of

accountig policies, notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory

material results of operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The Auditor's

Report shall be certfied as to its confonnance with such principles by a certifed public

accountant who is lie.ensed to practice that profession in the State of 
New Jersey.

vi. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporar or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a. building, in whole or in par, pursuant to .N.J.S.A.

52:27D~133.

vü. Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of pricipal and

interest or the equivalent thereof on any constrction moitgage, perment mortgage or other

financing including returns on institutional equity financing and marlret rate related pary debt

for the project for a period equa to the term of ths agreement.

vüi. Default ~ Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perlorm any obligation

imposed upon the Entity by the temis. of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any

applicable grace or eure periods.

ix. Entity - The term Entity within ths Agreement shall mean Athena BLDG i 10

Urban Renewal, LLC, which Entity is fanned and qualfied pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20~5. It
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shal also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided

they are formed and operate under the Law.

x. Improvements or Project ~ Any buidig, st11cture Qr fixture permanently affixed

to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

xi. In Rem Tax Foreclosure .or Tax Foreclosure - A sunuar proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under NJ.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-

129 ~tseq.

xi. Land Taxes - The amount of taes assessed on the value of land, on which the

Project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not

exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates., including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determned by the Tax Assessor and the Tax

Collector.

xiv. Law - Law shal refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and

supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, 6t seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003, relating to long

term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance

08-074 which authorized the execution of this Agreement; and Ordiance 07-123, as may be

amended or supplemented from tie to time, which requires the execution of a Project Labor

Agreement, and all other relevant Federal, Stàte or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules

and regulations.

xv. Lease Up Period - Shall begin on the date of the issuance of the fist Certificate of

Occupancy (whether permanent or temporary) for any floor or any portion thereof. Durg the

Lease Up Period, the Entity shal pay the sum equal to the estited Annual Servi~ Charge

divided by the number of Units divi&~d by 12 for each' Unit for each month after that Unít has

received a Certficate of Occupancy, whether the floor is actually occupied or generated revenue.

The payment shall begin on the 1st day of the month following the issuance of the Certficate of

Occupancy for that Floor. The Lease Up Period for the Project expires twelve (12) months after

the issuance of the fist Certificate of Occupancy for any floor.

xvi. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Mium Annual Service Charge shall

be the greater of:

(a) the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property in the area covered
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by the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, or in the case of

tax exempt property, the projected tax levy based upon the assessed value for the year in which

the application is fied, whic~ amount the paries agree is $87,674; or

(b) the sum of $1,200,000 per year, which sum wil be prorated only in the years

in which Substantial Completion occurs and this Agreement termates.

The Minimum Anual Service Charge shal be paid in each year in which the

Annual Service Charge, calculated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20~i2 or this Agreement, would be

less than the Minimum Anual Service Charge.

(wii. Net Profit - The Gross Revenues of the Entity less all operatig and non-operating

expenses of the Entity, al determned in accordance with generaly accepted accounting

principles, but: . .
(1) there shal be included in expenses: (a) aU Annual Service charges paid puruant to

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1~; (b) al payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20~

15 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an ~nnual amount sufficient to amortze (utilzing the straight lie

:Qethod-eqal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and al capita costs determed in

accordance with generaly accepted accountig priciples, of any other entity whose revenue is

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; Cd) al reasonable

annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the

computation of excess profits including the cost of al management fees, brokerag commssions,

insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional

service fees, utiities, building maintenance costs, building and offce supplies and payments into

repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent includig but not limited to

ground rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on

debt, except interest which is . par of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other

compensation paid, diectly or indiectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or

officers, parers or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity..

xviü. Pronouns ~ .He or it shall mean the masculne, feminine or neuter gender, the

singular, as well as the plural, as context requies.
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xi. Substantial Completion - The determnaton by the City that the Project, in whole

01' in par, is ready for the use intended, which ordiarily shall mean the date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certifcate of Occupancy for any porton of the

Project.

xx. . Te1DnatIon - Any act 01' omission which by operation of the terms of this

Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xx. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constrctig the Proj~ct through the date a

Certifica~e(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth

in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall.be included in Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred

by the Entity and certfied by an independent and qualfied architect or engineer, which are

associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials 01'

contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordiar costs incured

including the cost of demolishg strctures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocatig displaced residents or buildings and the clearg of title. The Entity agrees that final

Total Project Cost shall not be less than its estimated Total Project Cost.

ARTICLE n w APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for al the hnprovements to be

constructed and maintaied in accordance with the teims and conditions of this Agreement and

the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constrcted on certn propeity known

on the Offcial Tax Assesor's Map of the City as: Block 109, Lot W A, more commonly known

by the street address of i 10 First Street, and described by metes and bounds in Exhbit 1 attached. .
hereto.

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Fonntion is attâched hereto as

Exhbit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law;

has been reviewed and approved by the Commssioner of the Deparent of Community Affair;

and has been fied with, as appropriate, the Offce of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson

County Clerk, al in accordance with NJ.S.A. 40A;20~5,

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed
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Entity represents that it wil construct a 35 story building, contang approximately 452

residential rental units, approximately 16,597 square feet of retai space and 343- parking spaces

for the use of the residents and retail customers only, al of which is specifcaly descrbed Ín the

Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to digently undertake to commence constrction and complete the

Project in accordance with the Estimated Constrction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that. it is the owner of the property upon which the Project is to be

constrcted. Upon constrction, the Entity represents that the Improvements wil be managed

and controlled as follows:

The Entity represents tht it is the owner of the Land upon which the project is to be

constrcted and wil manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges that the Entity may

enter into a management agreement for the Project and wil pay a management fee in accordance

with HU regulations as provided in the Entity's agreement with HO, which fee was disclosed

in its tåx exemption application. The City acknowledges that the Entity may enter into future

management agreements so long as such agreements are not used to reduce the City's economic

benefits under this Agreement and the management fees to be paid are comparable to those

disclosed in the application.

Section 2.6 Finaiicial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhbit 6. The Plan sets fort estiated Total Project Cost, the. .
amortization rate on the Tota Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates to be paid on

conStrction financing, the source and amount of paid"in capital, and the terms of any mortgage

amortzation.

Section 2.7 Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schedules and

lease tenns are set fort in Exhbit 7.

ARTICLE il . DURTION ÒF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term
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So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the paries hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of 14 years

from the date of the adoption of Ordinance 08-074 on May 28th t 2008t which approved the

tax exemption or 10 years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project. The tax

exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefuless of the Project and shall

contiue in force only while the Project is ownèd by a corporation or association form.ed and

operating under the Law.

ARTICLE IV . ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following payments to

the City:

(i) City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minium Annual

Service Ctlarge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 10% of the Annual Gross RevenuEf for the

427 market rate unts, parkig and retail space and 10% of the "Annuiù Gross Revenue for the 25

ADUs. The Annual Service Charge shall be biled initially based upon the Entity's estimates of

Annual Gross Revenue which shall not be less than the its estimate of Gross Revenue as set

forth in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as Exhbit 6. Thereaftert the Annual Service Charge

shall be adjusted in accordance with tbís Agreement,

A Minimim Annual Service Charge shal be due beginning on the effective date

of this Agreement. The Anual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month

following the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fais to timely pay

t.e Minium Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shal

bear the highest rate of interest permtted in the case of unpaid taes or tax liens on land until

paid.

Notwithstanding anytg herein to the contrar t upon Substantial CompletIont

the

"Mum Annual Service Charge shal be prorated in accordance with $ection L.2(xvi)(b) and

the Lease Up Period.

(ii) County Servce Charg;e: an amount equal to 5% of the Annual Service Charge

upon
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receipt of that charge, for remittance to the County by the City.

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments

The Annual Service Charge shall' be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax .

exemption in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows: .

i. . Stage One: From the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until

. the last day of the 6th year, the Annual Service Charge shal be 10% of Annual Gross Revenue;

ii. Stage Two: Beginning on the' 1st day of the 7th year following Substantial

Completion, an amount equal to the greater of the Anual Service Charge or 20% t?f the amount

of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the lånd and Improvements;

ii. Stage Three: Begining on the 1st day of the 8th year following the Substantial

Completion, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge oi' 40% of the amount

of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Imrovements;

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 9th year following Substantial

Coi;pletion, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 60% of the amount

of the taxes otherise due on the value of the land and Improvements.

v. Final Stage: Be.ginning on the 1st day of the 10th year following Substantial

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otheiwise due on the value of the land

and Improvements.

Section 4.3 Credits

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax

Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the

pre-existing improvements, in. order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual

Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount)

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarrly installments

against the Annual Service Charge. In any quarer that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax

Payments when due and owing, such de.1inquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Lad

Tax Payment credits agaist the Annual Service Charge for that quarer. No credit wil be

applied agaist the Anual Service Charge for paral payments of Land Taxes. In addtion, the

City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed agaist the property
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pursuant to the In Rem Tax Forelosure Act, NJ.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default.

and termnate this Agreement.

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarerly

installments on those dates when. real estate tax payments are due; subject, neverteless, to

adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.. .
In the event that the Entity fais to pay the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear

. the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid.

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an annual Admnistrative Fee to the City in addition to the

Annual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administative Fee shall be calculated as two

(2%) percent of each prior year's Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on

or before December 31st of each year, and collected in the same manner'as the Annual Service

Charge. In the event that the Entity fails to timely pay the Administrative Fee, the amount

unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest penntted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on

the land unti paid.

Section 4.6 Affordable Housg Contribution and Set-Aside

The Entity, the City and ~thers are party to the Consent Order, have agreed to set aside

25 units. on-site as Affordable Dwellng Units and pay $2,500,000 to subsidize 25 units of

Choice Program off-site at the Summt Heights Project, which obligations were intended

to subsume any ot~er Affordable Housing obligations imposed by the City of Jersey City,

specifically those set fort in Section 304~28 of the Jersey City Municipal Code. The

performance of the Affordable Housing obligations in that agreement is a material

inducement to the City to enter into this Financial Agreement and a material breach of

that agreement shall be considered a material breach of this Financial Agreement.

A. Contribution. Waived.

B. Remedies. Not applicable.

Section 4.7 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum

Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, includig adjustments theret?, Admiistrative
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Fees, compliance with the Affordable Housing obligations imposed by the Consent Order, and

any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of ths Agreement.

ARTICLE V . PROJECT ElVLOYMNT AN CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contractig Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other

economic related opportnities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8. In addition, the Entity

shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Ordinance 07-123 as it exists or as it

may be amended ftoni tie to time.

ARTICLE VI. CERTIFCATE OF OCCUPANCY:

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and ageed that it shal be .the obligation of the Entity to .obta all

.Certcates of Occupa~cy in a tiely manner so as to complete constmction in accordance with

the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the

Ceitificates of Occupancy shal subject the property to full taxation for the period between the

date of Substantial Completion and the date the Certficate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 . Filng of Certicate of Occupancy

It shall be the priary responsibilty of the Entity to fortwith fie with both the. Tax

Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Faiure of the Entity to fie such issued Certficate of Occupancý as required by the

preceding paragraph, shal not militate against any action or non~action, taken by the City,

includig, if appropriate retroactive biling with interest for any charges determed to be due, in

the absence of such filing by the Entity.

ARTICLE VII ~ ANAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and inteinal controls established

and administered in accordance with generay accepted accounting principles.

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. An Auditorls Report: Within niety (90) days afer the close of each fiscal or calendar

year, depending on the Entityts accounting basis that the Agreement shal continue in effect, the
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Entity shal submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local

Governent Serices in the Deparent of Community Afairs, its Auditor's Report for the

preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shal include, but not be limted to:

condominium unit purchase price, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgagees) associated

with the purchase or construction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial

afairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and ths

Agreement. The Report shall. clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during

the previous year. .

B. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary ç1ate of the executon oftWs Agreement, and

each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal

officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement litig the persons having an ownership

interest in the Project, and t~e extent of. the ownership interest of each and such additional

information as the City may request from time to time.

Section 7.3 . !nspectionl Audit

The Entity shal permt the inspection of its property, equipment, buildigs and other

facilties of the Project and, if deemed appropnate or necessar, any other related Entity by

l'epresentatives duly authorized by the City and the NJ Division of Local Government Services in

the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permt, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such ex.amnation or audit shall be made

durng the reasonable hour of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent deaignated

by the Entity.

Al costs incul1'ed by the City to conduct- the audit, includig reasonable attorneys' fees if

appropriate, shall be biled to the Entity and paid to the City as par of the Entity's Annual

Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a deliquent

service charge.

ARTICLE vm- LIMTATION OF PROFIS AN RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limtation of Profits and Reserves

Dung the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15.
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The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,

and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of

the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and IDay retai such P.ar of the excess

Net Profits as is' necessar to eliminate a deficiency in that resere, as provided in N.J.S.A..

40A:20"15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto

shall be permittd after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of

the preceding year's Gross Revenue: Pusuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-14(b) there is expressly

excluded from the calculation of Gross Revenue and Net Profit in the determation of Excess

Profit, any gai realized by the Entity on the sale of any condominium unit, whether or not

taable under federal or state law.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net frofit

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any fiscal year, shall exce~d the Allowable

Net Profits for such period, then the Entity, within one hundrd and twenty (120) days after the

end of such fiscal year, shall pay such excess' Net Profits to the City as an additional service

charge; provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determed pursuant to

aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the entity's excess net profits shall include

those project costs directly attbutable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other

'costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this ageement even

though those costs may have been deducted from the project costs for purposes of calculatig the

annual service charge.

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve! Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or
Sale

The date of termnation, expiration or sale shal be considered to be the close of the fiscal

year of the Entity. Within niety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the

amount of the reserve, if any, maitaed by it pursuant to ths section and the excess Net Profit,

if any.

ARTICLE IX M ASSIGNMNT AN/OR ASSUMTION

Section 9.1 Approval

Subject to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20"5(e), any sale or transfer of the Project, shall

be void uness approved in advance by Ordinance of the Muncipal CounciL. It is understood and
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agreed that the City, on written application by the Entity, wil not unreasonably withold its

consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of ths Agreement provided 1) the new Entity

.does not own any other Project subject to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the

new Entity is' formed and eligible to operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of

this Agree~ent or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under ths. Agreement is fully assumed by

the new Entity, 5) the Entity shall pay the City a transfer fee equal to 2% of the then curent

Annual Service Charge as required by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-10d.

Section 9.2 Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in

ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new

tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to

the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for

appropriate action on the requested assignment. The fee shal be-non-refundable.

ARTICLE X w COMPLIACE

Section 10.1 Operation

. During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under ths Agreement shall not

only be tennnable as provided by N.J.SA. 40A:20-1, et seq., as curently amended and

_ supplemented, but also by a Default under thi Agreement. The Entityts faiure to comply with

the Law shall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other

remedies, have the right to termate the tax exemption.

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyit Representative

During the term of this Agreement the Entity must comply with Ex.ecutive Order 2002-

005, and Ordiance 02-075, reqirng Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative. Status.

The Entity's failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a

Default under tms Agrement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to

termate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XI .. DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default
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Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the tenu of this Agreement or

failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imosed by the Law) beyond any applicable

notice, cure or grace period.

Section 11.2 Cure' Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default) the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the

Default (Default Notice). The Default Notice shall set forth with paricularty the basis of the

alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice) to cure. .
any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However) if) in

the reasonable opinion of the City) the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days using

reasonable diligence, the City wî1 extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the. .
right to terminate ths Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default due to a faiure to pay any charges defied as Material

Conditions in Section 4.7) the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to t~nnnate the Agreement as

provided in Arcle xn herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remediesi have the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-17 et seq. and/or may declare a

Default and tennnate this Agreement. Any default ansing out of the Entity's faiure to pay Lad

Taxes) the Minimum Annual Service Charge) Admnistrative Fees, or the Anual Service

Charges or its failure to comply. with the Afordable Housing obligations imposed by the

Consent Order shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided in Aricle XI

herein, but shall alow the City to proceed immediately to termnate the Agreement as provided

in Arcle XI. All of the remedies provided in this Agreement to the City; and all rights and

remedies granted to it by law and equity shal be cumulative and concurrent. No termnation of

any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against

the Entity because of its faiure to pay Land Taxes, the Mium Annual Service Charge,

Anual Service Charge, or Administrative Fees or its failure to comply with the Affordable

Housing provisions of the Consent Order. This right shall apply to arearages that are due and
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owing at the time 01' which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there. '.
had been no termnation. Furher, the bringig of any action for l.and Taxes, the Mium

Annual Service Charge, the Anual Service Charge, Admstrative Fees, or for breach of the

Consent Order or of any covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided for the

recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to t~rmnate the ta

exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified remedy.

In the event of a Default on the par of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Arcle

IV, the City among !ts othe remedies, reserves the right to proceed agaist the Entity's land and

propert, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or

amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, di-ectly or impliedly to

mean taxes. or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is

pertnent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or muncipal liens on land.

ARTICLE XU. TERATION
Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default withn the time period provided

in Section 11.2, the City may tennnate this Agreement upon thirt (30) days written notice to

the Entity (Notice of Teinrnation).

Section 12.2 Voluntay Termiation by the Entity

The Entity may after the expiratton of one year from the Substantial Completion of the

Project notiy the City that as of a certain date designated in the noticeJ it relinquishes its status

as a tax exem,pt Project. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Anual Service Charges

and the profit and dividend restnctions shal terminate.

Section 12.3 Fial Accounting

Within ninety (90) days after the date of tennnation, whether by affiiative action of the, .
Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the

Entity shall provide a ~al accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any) pursuant to the.

provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any excesS Net Pt'fits. For purposes of

rendering a final accountig the termnation of the Agrment shall be deemed to be the end of

the fiscal year for the Entity.

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes
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Upon Termnation or expiration of t1us Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project

shal expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shal thereafter be assessed and

conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taable

property in the City.

Section 12.5 Termination Payment

In addition to any other remedies available to the City upon termnation whether

voluntar or upon default, the Entity shall pay to the City an amount equal to the dierence

between the service charge actually paid and the service charge that would have been due had

each adjustment period provided in Section 4.2 hereofs been of the shortest duration permitted. .
by law i.,th~re~y generating the most accelerated increasess pemitted by law.

ARTICLE xn M DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbiti'ation

In the event of a breach of the withn Agreement by either of the pares hereto or a

dispute arising between the paries in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth hereini

either par may apply to the Superior Couit of New Jersey.by an appropriate proceedng, to

settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as wil tend to accomplish the puiposes of the Law.

In the event the Superior Court shall not entertai jursdiction, then the paries shal submt the

dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determned in accordance

with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law. The cost for the arbitration shall be bome equally by the paries. The parties. .
agree that the Entity may not file an action in Superior Cour or with the Arbitraton Association

unless the Entity has fist paid in full all charges defied in Article IV, Section 4.7 as Material

Conditions.

ARTICLE XI ~ WAIVER.

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shal constitute a waiver or

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies; includigs without limitations the right 'to

tennnate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions providea.

herein. Nothng herein shal be deemed to limt any right of recovery of any amount which the

City has under law, in equitys or under any provision of this Agreement.
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ARTICLE XV - INDEMNCATION

Section 15.1 Defied

It is understood and agreed that in the eyent the City shall be named as .pary defendant in

any action alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement. .
and/or the provisions of NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify and hold the City

harless agaist any and all liabilty, loss, cost, expense (includig reasonable attorneys' fees

and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, .including the cost of enforcing this

indemnity) arsing out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all statutory or

common law defenses 01' legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this

indemncation. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense, counsel to be

'selected by the City, subject to the reasonable consent of the Entity. However, th~ City

maintains the right to intervene as a pary thereto! to which intervention the Entity consents; the

expense thereof to be borne by the City.

ARTICLE XV- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail

Any notice requied hereunder to be sent by either pary to the other shal be sent by

certifed or registered mail, return receipt requested.

-Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

The Athena Group
712 Fif Avenue

Eighth Floor
New York, New York 10019

and

Joseph G. Ragno, Esq.
Waters, McPherson, McNeil, P .C.
300 lighting Way
Seventh Floor

Secaucus, New Jersey 07096

uness prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notied the City in writing otherwise.
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In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this

Agreement, of the name and address of Entitt s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Offce of the City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street

. Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector
,

unless pnor to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice.

to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Property's Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVMSEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severabilty

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a

Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of

this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or

circumtances other than those .as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

affected thereby, and each tenIl, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be

enforced to the fullest extent permtted by law.

If a Material Condition shal be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each

other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a maner contemplated

by the paries and the Law. This sha include, but not be limited to the authorization and re~

execution of ths Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the

pares and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement ü it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this

Agreement wlich would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.

ARTICLE xvm w MICELLANOUS

Section 18.1 Construction
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. .
This Agreement shall be constred and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State

of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiing

construction against the par drawig 01' causing ths Agreeiient to be drawn since counsel for

both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section 18.2 . Conficts

The paities agree that in the event of a conflct between the Application and the language

contaied in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail: In the event of confict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevai.

Section 18.3 Oral Representations

There have been no oral representations made by either of the pares hereto which are

not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authOlizing the Agreement,

and the Àpplication constitute the entire Agreement between the paries and there shal be no

modifications thereto other than by a writtn instrment approved and executed by both pares

and delivered to each party.

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Muncipal Council approving

this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a par hereof.

Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the

City.

ARTICLE XI .. EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits
The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set fort at

lengt herein:

1. Metes and ~ounds description of the Project;

2, Ordiance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreem.ent;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certficate of the Entity;

5. Estimated Constrction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertng of the Project;
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7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rental Schedule and Lease Term;
8. Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;

9. Arcbitects Certfication of Actu Constrction Costs.

IN WITNESS WlREOF, the pares have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above written.

ATHENA BLDG 110 URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

ATTEST:

'RO~BL
,CITY CLERilf '.c

CITY OF JERSEY CIY

lro~
BRI O'REILLY
BUSINSS ADMIISTM OR

500802
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Cit Clerk Alà No:

AgendaNo..~

Ord. 08-074:

3.P. 1st Reading

ORDINANCE
OF'. .

JERSEY CITY, N.J.

Agenda No. ~. 1/.' 2n Reàding & Rna p~ge

CQUNCIL AS A.WHOLE
offered and moved adoption 01 the following oldiiiarce:

CnY OROINANCE 08-074

llTLE: O~lN.AëE APPROVIG A 10 YEAR TAX EXEMPi'CON FOR: A MAl' RATE
itSIDENTIA RENTAL PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY ATHENA BLDG UO
URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URAN RENEWAt-ITY, PURSUANTOTHELONG
T.ERMTAX EXEMPTION LAW ~ 40A:20~1 E:~." .
TB;E MUICIPAL COUNCIL Oli THE CITY OF JERSEYer DOES ORDAI:., ..
WHEREAS, Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC, ån urban renewa entity, fomied and
quaified to do busiuesš under the provisioiis of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as
amended and supplemented, l: 40A.20.1 ~~. (Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity own certin properl known as Block 109, Lot WA, on the City's Offcial
Tax map, conSisting of ~proximalely .73 acies, and more commonly knowi by the strect address
of 110 First Strt, and mote speificatly described by metes and bounds, in the application

(Propert); and,

WHEREAS, the "Popert Is located wilhin 'the PowerhouS Ar Redevelopment Plan Aiea as
requited by, N,J.S.A, 40A:20-Aand~. 40A:12A-5(g).; and .

WHEREAS. since the Entity estimates comtcuction costs that wil exceed $25 milion, the project
shall be subject to a Project Labor Agreement lI required by Ordinace 07-123; ;id

WHEREAS, the Entity has applied for a lQ yea long te~ la exe~ptiol\ to CQßstncl a project
consIsting of a. 35 story building to C9Jltan approximately 452 maket rate residential rental units,
approximatly t 6,597 squae feet 0 fretaI space an 343 parking space for the use of theTesidents
and retaU cus\omers only (Project): and

WHEREAS, Ath~ eioo I to Ùrban R,énewal, LLC, has agree to:

L. pay tae greåter of (i) the Minimum Anual Service Chage Ot (ii) J 0% of 
the Anua Gross

Revenue, which sum is estimated to be $1,585,212 and which sum shall be subject to
statuory staged increases over tne term of the ta exemption; and

2. pay an aiiua sum equal to 2% of each prior yr.'s Anmia Service Chage as an

Administrive Fee; and

3. provide employment and othcr economic oppoi:nilies forCity residents and businesse; and. . . .'
4. pay "to th Cii:, for remittace to Hudson County, an 'amount equal 

to 5% of the Anual

Servce Charge upon receipt of that charge; and

5. . as par ofAts consent order in the miier entitled New Gold Éauilies Corp., and. BLDG

tvagement Co., Inc., vs. City of Jersey City. et aI, Docket No. 05~v.0356 I -ORO-SOW i
set aside 25 utts on-site as Affordable Dwellng Units and pay $2,500,000 to subsidize 25
unitS of Choice Program off;site ai the Sumit Heights' Project, which obligiition~ were



. d:nUnuaUnn of Cily 0rçllnance 08-014 , ,page. i

intended to subsume any other Affordale HousingobIigaoii lip'osed byrheCityofJersy
City, spifice.ly ihe requirementto contrbuteto anaffordnble housing trtfùndas set forti

in Sectión 304-28 of the Jerey City Munc!pal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City, hertby determines that the relative ~enefis of the project OULWeigh the cost
of the ta exemption, for the following reasns: .

L. the (:irent rea estae taes genenite revenue of only $87,674, whereas, the Anual Service

Charge as "estimated wil genel8e revei~ afmore than $l,5~S,212 to the City;

i. it is expecte that the project will creae åpproximattly 300 jobs during constrctiòn a,d 15

nt;w p~muentjobs~

3. the Project wil .stailize and conliibute to the ecnonic growt of buslnçsses in thesurrounding area.' . .
4. the Projec will ,fuher the overal redevelopment objectives of Hie Powe.rous Ars

Redeyelopment Plan;

5.. . the Citys impact anLysis; en fie ~th the QffC6-of the. City Clerk indicas that Ui¿

b'enefits of the Projec outweigh the cOsts to the'city and .

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the ta l:Kemption is Importt. in obtniiùg
development ofthe project and infl¥encing the loeational decisions of probable oooupants for-the
following reaons: .

1. the relàtve siabilty and predictabilty of the i\ua Sèrviee Chargqs wil make the Project

more attctive to lnvestors neeed to finance.the Project;

2. tle relative stabilty iid predictabilty of 
the Anual Service Chacges wilt-allow the owner

to stabiliz its operating budget, I!UO~ng a high level of maintenance to the building over
the life of the Project, which wil attact tenants to the.ProJect.and insure the likelihood of

. tbe succs ofthe Project; and

WHEREAS, Athena BLDG 1 (0 Urban Renewal Company has initíally complied with Exeëutive
Order2002.00S concerning "Disclosure of 

Lobbyist Representat"Ve Slaws" by filing ¡m'appropriate

iètter in the Offce of the City Clerk.

WHlREAS,.Athena BLDG i 10 Urban Renewal, LLC lias agree to comply y,ith the Cil) ofJersey
City's ?rdiaaoo 07.123, Requiring Apprenti~ships and ~roject Labor A:grments. .

NOWt THEREFOREt BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Cl)uucil olthe City.of Jersey City
thaI:

'A. The applicalion of Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC, an uran reneVlål company,

fonned a.d qualified to do business under the provlsioos Ofthii Long Term Tax Exemption Law of
1992, as ame~ded and supplemented ~' 40A:20. i m,~' a copy of which. Í$ on fie in the
offce of the City Clerk for Block \09. Lot WA, more commonly known by the street addres of
110 Fiest Street, morç speifcally descñbed by metes and .bounds in the application is hereby
.approved .
B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is h~reby authorized to execute a ta exemption
Fin~clal Agreement an a Project Employment and Còntrcting Agreent, provided that the

prepa.yment and contribution agreement relating to tls Propert au1norlzed by separte Resolution

ha bee fuly executed. The Financial ¡\greement.shaU include at a minimum the following termsand condItions: .
1. Term: the eilierofthieen (14) years from the adoption ofthe wiilûn Ordinance or ten (10)

years from the daie the project is Substa.niiatly Complete~



. connUliUon of City OrdlIlQn~
åa-=74 . psg, ~

. .
2. Anua Scnnce. Clie: éach yea the-greater 01.

(a) the Miiiúi Anua Servce Charge tqual to,$87,614 upon'ProjcctCompletlçn,
whether ~r Dot th~ ProíCft is occpie4; or . . .

(b) LO~ of the Apua Gross Revenue, ww.ch sum is esûmated to be $t,Sß5,212, whch

shal be subject to statuory increaes duntlg the term ofthe la exemption.

J. Adíis1Íy~ Fee: 2% of tlie prior Yens ~~ Serice' Charge;

4. Co~~ Payment: 5~ of th.A sër~ce C~ige 10 1hé ~ity for r~mltlce. by the èily10 Hudson Coúnty~ ...' " .
5. . . Projec A 3S story building to conta approxliatly 4S:i i;ait J)e redential renta

. uits, approx1inately' 1(;,591 squae feet of remil space and 343 parking sp for the uSe
of th reSIdents ánd retal customers onl '. . ." .... .

'.

6. Afordable HoÍ1hig Trot F.~d~.to set aslde.25 untS on-site lI Afordale DweIlíng Uwls
. and pay $21500,000 to subsidiz 25 ur~ of Chi)i~ Prögiam oresite at tho Erit Heights

Project, whch obUgatons were Intended to subsUI0 any pther Afordale ,Hobslng'
o.bligat!oil ilI¡:osè tiytheCilyof Jersey 

CitY, specificaly those stt fört inSectton 30..28 .
of the Jersy City ~lUcipål Caiie, as par'of its consnt onier in the maer entitled New
'Gald Equities CQrp.. aid BLDG Managemt;nt Co., (nc,. VS. City ofJeisey City, et al, Docket
No. 05.cv"(3561~DRD-SD:W;

1. An obligation to execute a Project Employncnt nnd Contracting Agreement to insure

employment and other economic benefits to City resid~nts and bllinesses.

l 8. Ex.ecution'of a Project Laor A.grêement lI reql,ii by Ordinnnce 07-123: The: Projec

Labor Agreement shall be in subsl.antially the fonn on .tle in the office ofthe City Clerk.

c: The City Çlerk shall deliver a certfied copy of the: OrdinWlCè and Financial Agreement to

the Tax Asessor imd Director orthe DIvision ofLoci Governent Services.. l. .
D: The application is on fie wilh Uie offce 'of.the City Clerk. Tne Financial Agi:eement and

. Projeçt' Employment' and CÓntraing Agreement shall be in substatially the Tolm on fie in the
, Offce of the CIty Clerk subject to sucb modificaion fÌ'the Blliness Adminitrtor or Corpol'ition'

Cluiiel deems åppropnate or a~essar, .

E. AU òrdinances and par of Qrdinance inconsistent herewith are hereby repeaed. .a I . .
F. Tlús ordioacé shall be par of the Jerey City Code as thougk codified iid fuly set fo.i1
theiein. The City Clerk shall1\ave this ordinance cadi'fled and incorpora in. the offdal copies of

. the Jer~r City Code,

G. 11s ordinance shaH tae effect at the lime lUd in the maner provided by law.

H. The City Clerk nnd Corporation Counl be and thèyare hereby authorized and direted to
change any chaplet numbers, arcle numbers ¡id section numbe in the event that the codifcation.
bf th ordnance.reveas that there is a conflct between those numbers and the existing code, in
ortlcr to avoid cotúlon ~d possible accideiital repellers of exisling 'provisions .

NOTE: All material is new; therefore .iinderlirung ha ben o~ltt For puaiosé of
advertsing only, new matter is indicaed by bold face and repeled matter by rlalic.

JM/he
5105/08

APPROVeD AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:
B""""" Mml.totrlQtorpUon eo..ci

CfillcatloR Required 0



, .
Ord.natC~. of the City of Je:r$ey City; N.J.. Öro 08-074' , .ORI'NNCE NO. . . . , . . . E~.l .

?/.P. MAY 14 20l8 ZI.N. MAY" 28 ?ÐDB Q~ ~ F.~ ('L .¡.i: 'r:o ~Tm
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'ÁPPLICATION FOR LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION~ .
P-rUANT T9 N.J.S.A. 40A~ 20..1 ET ßEQ. ON 

BEHALF OF

ATHENÁBLDG ii~ URBAN 
RENEWAL, L.L.C.

ApPLICANT
ATTORNEY FOR ~PLICAN

Athena BLDG 1 W Urban Renewal, L.L.C.
712 Fifth, Avenue.
Eighth Floor
New York, New Xork 10019

. .
JOSEPH G. RAGNO, ESQ.
Waters, McPherson, McNeil~ 'PC
300 Lighti1lg Way
Secaucus, New Jersey 07096
Telephone: (201) 863-4400
Facsimile: (201) 863-2866 .

DATE OF SUBMISSION: March 14, 2008



1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

'.

. 6.

7.

8.

9.

10. .

11.

12.

. 13.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXHIBIT INDEX........, ''1..' 'I. 'If' ......... ..1...1'. ...... .,1.." 1..1..111 ,...,."...,,...........,..,:.., ................

." .
TfI APP~lCANT i,:.":," ~1..~.;........,I...,.tl.' ...............1.'........".'.......'......1'."....,......,..........

IDENTIFICAT10N OF PROJECT SITE...,..............:.....................:..............................

DBSCIUPTION.OF THE PROJECT ..:..............;.....;.......................:..:...............:::........ .
PROJECT OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE .....................................:...............:................

REQUESTED T ~ ABATEMENT TBRMS ................................:..................;.............

. A. Estimate Annual Service Charge ................:...:......................................

B. ~ Exemption Tenn....:.......................................:........:..........:...............:......

C. Affordable Housing Set-Aside .........:...........~.........................................

:, : Ii::..'; Prep.ayment.:...............::............:.................................:......................:.:...

E. . Staged Adjustments ..........................;......................::.....:...................:.....

. F. Adininistrative Fee . ..:.. .. .. '", .
G. CRtlDry Share................'..i.i............iii.'...i........i..~:..,..,..,.................ll.I~'.ll..'..I."..

BENEFIT'fO CITY .......................................................................,........................

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE......,..............................................'..............:............. .
REAL ESTATE TAX INFORMATION ...............................:................ ........................- .
MUNICIPAL TAX ASSESSM~NT .....................:.....................,................................

STATUS OF THE MUNICIPAL TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES ................:................

GERTlfJCATION AS TO COMMENCEMÉNT.............................................................

ESTlMATBJOBS TO BE CREATED .........................................................................

COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND LoCAL REDEVELOPMENT LA WS ................ ........

ii.

i

1

1

2

2~3

4

4

4

4

4

5

5

5

6

6

6

6

6

6

7



EXHIIT INEX

Exhibit A Certioate ofFonnatioii for Athena BLDG UO Urban Renewal, L..L.C, . .
Exhibit B Ownership Disclosure Statement

Exhibit C , Metes & Bóunds Description

Exhibit D Site Plan

ExhibitE Total Project Cost EstIrpa.te

ExhibitF Good Faith Lease Estimates

Exhibit G
. I.' .

. .'. .
Proposed Financial Agreement

ExhibitH Estimated Alual Service Charge: Schedule

Exhibit r Estimated Financial Plan

ii



1. ' THE APPLICANT:

The Applicant, Ather:a BLDG 'liO Urban .Renewa~ L.L,C, (¿'Applicant") is a'duly

formed New Jersey Urban Renewal Limited Liabilty Company, qualified to do business under'

the, provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and supplemented, N.,J.S.A.

40A:20-1 et seq, (The "Law)l): Tli~ Applicant's principal place of business i~ c/o The Atl~ena, .
Group, 712 Fifth Avenue, Eighth Floor, New York, New York 10019. A copy of 

the Certificate. . .
of FormatioJ; for the Applicant is attåched as Exhibit A. . ,

The Applicant is wholly owned by its sole m,ember Athena BLDG New Jersey, L.L.C.. . '. . .
Ownership Disc1os1:re, Exhibit B.

." "

2. IDENTIFICATION OF PR.O.iECT SITE

:The- site of the Project is a 31,588 square foot parcel of Úlld ißenHfied as Block i 09, Lot

W A on the Offcial Tax Map of the Cit~ of Jersey City, more commonly known as i 10 First. .
Street and described with particular~ty in tl~~ Survey and Metes.and Boimds Descriptiö? s.et forth

in Ex.hibit C (the "Project Site"). TIie Project Site wil 5e conveyed to the Applicant in fee piior

to the cOlnmeiiceineiit of C011stníctîon,

3. DESCRIPTION Q"FPROJECT

The Proj~ct ~hich .is the subject of this Application is a 35 story 452 unit residential

. rental building, compošed of approximately ó41,145 square feet in total (378,808 leasable),

broken down as follows:



Residential
Retail
Parking

469.970.1 squae feet
16,597:1 square feet
154.578:1 square ~eet '(343 spaces)

Of the 452 residential units, 25 are designated as Affordable Dwelling Units C"ADD")

and 427 wil be rented at l"Darket rates.

The Prqject Site is located entirely within tl1e bQU1)daries of the Powerhouse Arts

Redevelopment Plan, Area: and the Project, w~ich has received Preliminary Major Site Plan.

Approval, wil confQri with the requirements ofthe Redevelopment Plan. Site Plan, Exhibit D(

The estimated Total Project Cost is $172,286,037, Total Project Cost Estimate. Exhibit E.. .
. 4. :PROJECT OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Applicant is the fee owner of the P.roject Site and will own the improvements constjtuü?g

the Project. On sl.ibstantial completion, the Applican.t wil 

lease the Project to residential tenants.' .
and. third part retail users. Of the residential ~iiits, 427 will be.te~sed at market råtes an-d 25 wil. .. .'
be l~ased at affordable I e;" ~ate;, The 16,597~ ~s~~~.' f;'t '~f' ;eiail s~ace wil be, I oa"'' at. .... ..
market rates. See, Good Faith Lease Estimates, Exhibit F attached.

5. REQUESTED TAX AßATEMENTTERMS

A. Estimated Annuål Service Charge

. Applicant wil be obligated to make payment of an Annual Service Charge

(HASC") in lieu of taús on the Project improvements in year one followin~ full occupancy

estimated as follows:

2



a). Residential (452 Units)

Market Rate (427 Units)

10% of Anual Gross Revenue at 95% occupancy estimated to be.........,.,
$1,427,846

Affordable (25 Units)

5% of Annual Gross Revenue at 100% occupancy 
estimated to bé..........., $ 12,309

.-

f . '.. .
b). Retail (16,5 97x square feet)

.' .

. 1 O~ of Anual Gross Revenue from Third Party Lessees .estin:at~d to be......
$ 73,027

c)'. Par-king (343 Spaces). -
10% of Annual Gròss Revenue at estimated to be..................:...............

$ 73,030
:

.,

Total $1,585,212

Over the 10 year exemption term it is estimated that more than $18,100,000 in

ASC wil be generated by virtue of the rent escalations set forth in the unit and third part leases

'as well as the statutory staged a.djustments, The ASC wouid be pliasedMin 011 a floor-by-floor. . .
basis as subsumtial completion occurs in respect of a floor, over a maximum twelve (12) month

period from the substantial completion of the first floor, to allow for a reasonable lease-up

period. Proposed Financial Agreemënt, Exhibit G; Estimated Annual Service Charge Schedule,

Exhibit H; Estimated Financial Plan, Exhibit 1.

3
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B. Exemption Term

Applicant requests a Financial Agreement having a term of the lesser of 10 years

froni the date of substatial campletion or 15 years froin the execution of the Financial

. Agreement.

C. Affordable Housing Contribution.

The Applicant has agre~d to set aside 25 of the total of 452 units as Affordable. .
Dwellng Units: In addition the Applicant wil contribute $2.5 milion as a subsidy t? the

constction of a 45 unit Choice Program project concurently being constrcted in Jersey City.

D. Prepayment

In' connection. with the tax abatement, the Applicant wil agree to make . a

prepayment of $1,000,000 by june 1, 2009. The prepayment w~uld be credited against ~he ASC

due over tl)e first four y~ars after Substantial Completiol1.

E.. . Staged Adjustments . . .
Applicant agrees to the statutory. staged adjUstments as required by N.J .S.A.

40A:20-12b (2) as follows:

Year 1 - 6 .ASC

7 Greater of ASC or 20% of taxes otherwise due

8 Greater of ASC or40% of 
taxes otherwse due

9 Greater of ASC or 60% of taxes otherwise due

.10 Greater of ASC or 80% of taxes otherwise due

4



F.. Adminstrative Fee

Applicant agrees to pay an Administrative Fee over and above the ASC in the

anioimt qftwo percent (2%) oftbe prior year's ASC. .

G. County Share

Applicant agrees to pay anually; over and above the ASC, and amount eqiial to

five percent (5%) of the ASC to be remitted to the .County of Hudson pursuant to N,J.S.A.

40A:20.:12b.

. 6. BENEFIT TO CITY

Aside from the $1,585,212 in ASC estited to be geDerated in Year One, on. .
completion, J J O. First Street Project wil contribute substantialy to tiie City's housing stock in

general. . In addttioI\ the Project wil result in t1ie creation of25 new ADUs on site and additional. .
assistance to below market C.hoice Program housing offsite.

The construction of 
the Project will result in the creation óf 300'construction jobs and. on

completion, 15 new permanent jobs.

The obvious direct .ecol1ornc Deiiefit of the Project is the additional revenue flowing by

virtue of tiie ASC which is estimated to exceed $18,100,000 milion over the ten (l0) year

abatement tenn.

Wherea.s the CLlUent site generates approximately $87,674 land taxes, it is estimated that

the Project, once fully occupie?, ~il generate at least $1,585,212 in Annual Service Charges:

5



7. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

It is currently projected that, following execution of the Financial Agreement,

constniction wil commence in July, 2008. The Project is expected to tae 36 months to

complete and occupancy is projected for June, 2011. The constrction scl1edule is subject to

modification based on any presently unforeseen circumstances.
it :.

8. . REAL ESTATE TAX INFORMATION

$87,674.20 real estate taxes were paid on the. 
Project Site to the City in 2007.

9; . MUNICIPAL TAX ASSESSMENT

, The Project Site, (Block: 109, Lot: WA).is assessed for$1,580,OOO in 

2008.

. .
10. STATUS OF THE MUNICIPAL TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES

Municipal taxes and other'charges are current through the Úte ofthis Application.

11. CERTIFICATION AS TO COMMENCEMENT

Applicant certifies that it wil not commence Coiistniction on 'the Project until the

Finai'lcial Agreement has been authorized and fullr executed.

12. ESTIMATED JOBS TO BE CREATED

300 constiuction jobs are estimated in total.

15 permanent ful1~time jobs.

6



13. COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AN LOCAL 
REDEVELOPMENT LAW'S

Applicant cen;ifies that the Project complies with all State and local redevelopIJent laws

and is in conformity with the requirements of the Powerhouse Arts Redevelopment Plan.. .
Based upon the foregoing) we respectfilly requesti on behalf. of the Applicant, that the. .

City gi'.ant this Application and authorize .the' execution of the proposed Financial Agreement

between the Applicant and the City.

Respectfully submitted)

ATHENA BLDG 110 URBAN RENEWA.L,L.L.C.

By: g~~
Iri.1'~oIÙu~r

Date: #.A; li. ,2008

7
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CERTICA'I'O'N OF FORMTION'FOR"":' :': .... .. .'

.' ATÍfNA BLDG 110 URBAN RENEWAL, L.L.C. '.



,.,,.

State of New Jersey
DltllillmIllI 01' COlilMIllil'n' Ar'l",\llt

101 f;OlJTIl nROAn ¡;niRET
1'0 nl1~ RUG .

.1'R1M'1I1l nJ 08Gui.iiM
.CllnRi.v~'1 h, 'Rir:lrM,\N

Jli.,.NO COMMIi:qIONP;ll
.1 ON ¡;. COR7.1NI~

,~()V i;:ItOR .

DEPAATMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

TO:
. RE:

818'6 Treasur-ar .
ATHENA BLDGl110 UAB~N RENEWAL, LLC

. f.ilé it 825 .
An Urb.iin Renewal.fritilY .

.'

. Thle It! \Q Qertify \hal ihe attached CERTIPIC,ATE OF FOFlMATJÓN OF AN URBAN

RENEWAL ENTITY has be'SI1 axamlned and approved by the Oßpiiment o~ CommunitY Affalnli
pursúañl 10 the 'power vested \n II ul1der the "t.Qng i:erm Tax EXf)mpUon Law." p.lo. 1091,0.431.

..

OD~e thIs .;1..: day or ,,~~20! at Trenlofli New Jersey.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

BY

ß. Nrll' Jrr.I~',.f iI.. 11l/11" 0,f",,1'(1;r.- ~.:Ii¡lt,lI'r" "lin/ril "" Iri:vitrtll't¡Ir'f ,!1i1 Rtl'I"1 fbi,.. ."



i-. .

CERrrCATE OF FORM110N

OF

Athena BWG 110 Urbf1JRenewal, uC

FILED

(i .2 8 iD07 J

. STAiE TREASURER

. To: Departent of tht Treasury
Staie of New Jersl!

. '11 UNERSIGNE, for the purpose oj fanning a Limited Liabilty .
Compan pursiunt to rli provisions of NJSÀ 42:2B-l et seq., tne N~ Jersey Limited

. Liabilty Company ACT, her.eby executes thtfOllowng certifcate of:¡omuti~!l:

J. The .namCl of the Limited Liauilty Compary is

Athena l1WCJ.J10 Urban Rimewal, LLC

2. The aMre.ss òf ~he initial registered offoe of the companÝ in the State 0/ !'ew

. . Jersll is .'

. c/o Kraemer, IJum~. Mytulka, Lovell & Kulk, P.A.
'.6,'75 Morrs Avenue, Springfeld, 'New Je.rsey 07081

an fhf 'r¡e of the intial regitered agent for serce of pror;ess at thacuress ;8 .
Aihe.na BLDG 110' Urban Ren~al, LLC. .

'3, The r:ompar ha on~ or mor~ memer:s.

. 4. Duratin:' p~1petiai

. 5. The limited IilIifty cçmpan: has been organized to serve Cl public purpose,' it

operations sJill be àrrec:ed toward providing for an mang passible the clearanccr
re-pJanning, deelaJ71umt Dr rétúeltJpment of bliUhted ar~(1 orthe acqulsJton,
maagetent and operation 01 a projec urder rlie Comprehensi:e Housing an.
Reaevelapment ''Long Term Tax Exemption ra" ?i. 199 I, c. 431 (N.J.S.Å.. 40A:2o-

1, (fHeq.)

"



!tha purose forwhltFt it is fonn~d shall' /¡e to operas rir P.L. 1991, c,43J

(C.40A,t2rr! ttJ seq.) and to .¡rtiDte an'conåcl projeas for tM reáwetopmetl of'a.
radeve10pmmt area. pW'siu to a refÚûopment pla or projeer nec.qssm', usii, or

convenient for rJ retocaron ofresiden ditpltUed or to ~e dislaced bY th ref.stopnIell 01

all or parr u. oM or- mar. ~developme areas, t?r iaw an ltIXJertC. irium holsln.8 projeGt,
amt when (Joried li jiçjal agrcma wtth the wuiclpaUI, 10 a~i pla, deelap,
c:onsr;, rier, mrntai òr op'e~e lw_g, scror cirnen housnsi busttß, liustot,

. coTl~illl1 eunisra'Vdl community, lJe:rTtI recreatnna, edJonai ar welfar proje.r;J)
or MY cor1inarort of tWO or nwre òliheslJ type$: of impwmiem in. ir $Jiiek praject¡ undtr
Ruch, çonditonJ ti to (.!J, owiwrship, rngem wid cotirrol as regulted pur.ti to P.L.

i 9:ii1 c. risi (CAOA:io-i at seq.)

Sf) IlJ1g (J rhe entitY is obItgat unierfinidat ågrenwlti a I7mJclpalt! mae
~.. : 'p'ur$~ to P.L. .199Jr cA~J.cC,4~A:2o-i -et ser.), It shaU tmgast? in no buss.Qrhertha
. the tlliipl operaton. aM11g.e ojr1ie proJer; . .' .

. . The enthy Ji õqert ()rganized to serv a public: purpose,. Its opiirao/' shri1 be dlr'eçted
taward (1) the redeeloment oJ redeelopmet (1rtn., the ¡acl1.cm uf the Tlwceúc. tJf
rl!ldetl dilaced or 10 be dlslced by reàe~lopmimt, or the condUá oj lo an lTdsrat

incomt lieJisng jJrqJIICt3; (2),oIl? acquisltlon. marngtill an operaton øl Q. project.
reteveloplTri relpcalJTJ housng project, ar lo an TT~ income housng project ri
P.L. 1991, 'ç,43J.C.40A.:2f)1 /?r se(j.),' an (3) it sholl?J subjec:.¡Q reguJl7lt by the .
mwctplft tn which Irs project is ûiued, an to ii tim1aion IJr pronlbJi1of1 ~ apprçprie.,
on profits or dMn. for if 

0 long as if Temàrns the owner oj 0. projeçt ~iiject to P.L.. 1Wl,

c. 431 (C.40A.!2o.i et. seq.)

'. 'I mtini shan not .vol~rilY ~er ~; lfi'iO% '~f~he Ùwer.shl uf the proJect

or (l pr:rton thefeo!wtderlak l1 it under P.L. If/PI, c,4S1(C.4CA.Zo-i et sell.), ut( it
has firs rimved Z,oth ¡(,ref( andlhe projec:tjrom all rt:cton. of P.L. 1'9911

ci.431 (C.40A:20nl a seq,) III the T1iaer requred by P,L. 1991, c.491(C.40A:200i et seq.)
and, if ihu proj~ct tnalite.r housIng unft, ha obuilned the consen (J/fhe coimsioMr if
Community Iffs to ~aah transer,. with tlz éxcetion of tr01er to L1othsr ùt'an renefJ
enity, M apPTOV~rI l1 the mucipaliTy in. wfdch the prqeet is J1tuaed, which othr uran
reew ermty shal asslU all conm obligatONS of tm trßJerr ei UJ tJ

fzia! agreemnt with :lc/1 muciality. 'Ie en shaUftU anity witJlrhe m.cfat
gowim1g bod a tIs(jlOSur afthe per.rons havi.an owrlh'f 1119t in th projeil an 6f

th~ exe: ofth. ().rl1l mrerlm fleach. NtJh1g MreJri thaUprohibft (i "ter oftJt;

CT~ship inreS/ in the urb(l renal enty irsdlfprovldsd t1u the trae~ if grearer tha
~O percmt, is df¡os~d to the mim,ic:pa gavenig body in the pnua dlsc¡;~re $/tmC! or

. m comsondençe 3(mt to th rr~dpa1Ji in adi'aCl () the (1Jinual di;rlo~uro sratemrej to oWß . .

'_ ~ I

.
"

1..



. "

The entity is subject of rheprovisions ri Section 18 of p.L.i991, c.4ßl ,
(C.4M:20-18) resper:ns the powers oj the .TlunJc/pa1ity to alleviate jiminçIal '
d(fcuttes afthe iirban reriewalentltj or IÇ peifonn actions on behalf of the miiry

up~n a deteT7n.Oll offinanctaI emersenay:

'. Aii;y huuin8 units constnicted or acqulred by the entity $hall be ma¡ged

slIjcr: (0 the supervMon of, and nr1e. 'iiptf:d rn, rAe Comm.rsianer oj COl1iIftyAfairs. .
. The tindersigned represents that tliis filing compUes with State law as detaileli

in NJSA" 4'2 and thai she is arzihoried to sign thiSfor. on vehaif oJthe Limited

LiabtUty. Company.

_Dated:'1f /07
..¡

'.

"
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EXHIITB' .

OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

ATHENA BLDG 116 URBAN"l~.iNIiwAi.L.L.C.

NAME ADDRESS PERCENTAGE OWNED

Athena B:LDG New Jersey, L.L.C,

c/o The Athena Group
712 Fifth Avenue. Eighth Floor
New York, NY 10019

ATR'ENA BLDG NEW iERsin", L.L.C

'100%

Athena BLDG 1. 0, L,L.C. .

. clo The Athena Group .

7.12 Fifth Avenue. Eighth Floor
. Nev('tork;NY 10019

, ATHENA. BLDG 11 0, L.L.C.

100%

" .
, .Ath,ena.Jersey City 110 First Street, L.L.C.

, c/o The Athena Group
712 Fift Avenue - Eighth Floor

, New York, NY 10019 .

". . ';

50%

(a) 'BLDG 110 Associates, L.L.C.
(b) New Gold Equities Corporation

clo BLDG Manageméiit Co., lnc.
417 Fifth Avenue - Fourth FLoor

New York, NY 10019

50%- .
1 certify that the above represents the 'names "ad addresses of ali entities who own a 10%

or greater interest in Athena BLDG 110 Urban RenewaL, L.L.C. .

I further certify that no officer or eJ.ployee of the City of Jersey City has any interest,
direct.or indirect, in the above entity.

I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if any of the
foregoing statements made by me are willflly false, 1 am spbject to punishment,

AYHENABLDG 110 URBAN RENEWAL,LLC

By: ~~~~:j, Name:

Its: AV--ff6l~' i-G.IJ' S;bNtt-rPit

494473
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, . 'EXIDBITC',

METES & B.OUNnS,DESCRIPTION



~"ntiè No.' S:r2T"

DESClUP';XON

,
AL TEAi' CRTAJ plot:, piece or parcel of land, with the buildings and
improvem~nt8 t.hereon ex-ected, sit.uate, lying anš, being in the e-ty of Je.ii'ey
ci ty i County ot Hudson' and state of New Jeraey, The legal deße.ption ie'i

COMMENCING at the point foxmed by the intersection of the ea6t~ly line of
Warren Street with th~ north~iy iine of First Street i,

RUNING THENCS northerly aiòng said easterly line 01 Warren Street 200 feet
t.o the southerly line of Saoond street,

THENCE' easterly along the said southerly lina of Second s~r~e~ ~bòut. iss' fe~t
to the' line of propert: conveyed by American Snuff company; 'Q' New Jersey
Coiporati?nl by Deed da~ed necember 27 i 1915;

THENCE sout:he:ry paraL.lel wiëh the said -easterly line of Wax-reo Street and
along the .line Gf ~aid ~ro~erty conveyed by American' Snùff Company 200' feet
to såid northei.l:y line of -F:iJ:t stre'et,' . . .

THENCE wesce~iy along aaid no~therly line of First Street ~out' 158 fe~t' :~~
t:he point or Dlace of BEG1NNNG.. .

FOT infomation onl: Said premise,S are known as' i10 Ffrst Street, Jersey
ci ty i Nevi Jersey and designat:ed as :Block iOg Lot Ne:;t A on t:he Tax Map of
the City of Jersey City.
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TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIMTE



E)"'11TE

TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIATE

1. Cost of the land to the entity, whether acquired from a private or a public owner.

A¡'chite'ct, engineer' and attorney fees, paid or payable by the entity in connection
2. 'with the planng, c,onstruction and financing oftle project

3. Surveyig aiid testig charg~s in connectiòll th~rewi.th.. .
Actual constnction çosts whièh tle entity shall cause to be certed and veried
to the -municipålity and the m~icipål goveining body by and independent and

4., qualìed architect, includig the cost of any preparation, of the site undeltaken at

. the ~n~tyls expense.

5. Insurance, interest and finance costs during co~stiuction.

6. Co~ts ~f obtaining initial peimanent financlig.

. Commssjo~s and other ewenses 'paid or payable in connection will initial7. leasíng.' .
8. Real eStte taes and assessments duriiig the constnction period.

A developer's overhead based on a percentage .of actual COn.strlction costs (5% of
9. item #4).

Total Project Cost

$10,000,000

$3,625,000

$50,000

'$139,067,03~

$8,878,99,1

$744,164 .

$2,700,824

$266,667

$6,953,3~2

$172,286,037

494474112
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GO.OD FAITH LEASE ESTIMATES



4954941'j

~: .":

EXIDBITF

GOOD FAiTH LEASE ESTIMATES 

The following is a good faith estimate of 
the initial rents to be achieved from. the Project.

A. RESIDENTIAL w MAKET

427 Units (357,856 sf net rentable ~ $42/sf)

B. RESIDENTIAL-AFFORDABLE

25 One Bedroom (f $820/month

C. RETAIL

16,597 square ,feet (g $44/sqii,are foot

D. PARK'INC

343 Spaces (f $175/lUoiith

$15,029,962

$246, 183/a1lmm

$73 Ó,268/anollff

$720,300/al111Um
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.PROPOS,ED FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, , .
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EXHiBITR

ESTIMATED ANNUAL , ,

SERVICE CHARGE SCHEDULE. . '.



EXHIBITH

ESTIMATED ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

. -., .
Based 011 good faith estimates of the rents to be achieved, the Annual Service Charge

0v~r the term oftlie exemption is estiated as follows: '

YEAR! 10 YEAR TOTAL

. A. Market Rate - Residential (427 Units)* $1,427,846 $16,368,658

B. Affordable Dwellng Units (25 Units) $Ü,309 $141,111

C. Retail (16,597 square feet) $73,027 $837,170

D. Parking (343 spaces)
$72,030 $~25,743

Gr.a:u/ Total . $1,585,212 $18,172,682

. *
at 95% occupancy

4944751.3,
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ESTIMTED FINÁNCIAL PLAN
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State of New.J ers'ey

nlWA'Rïliv OF' CÒr.tiIlHl'l1 AFFAlii
ttil1m\lTli'niiÓAJI Sll1:tr

PO 1I/l\ Il
'rii;i,~ l: 0l6!/M3l1

.ION 1t..COR7.1NIl-
UnV)il'lopR

CIlMtt.E'( n.. nlC:1l(ll,lf'
"'~i.lNG COMMIMIt'NH:lt

OI:PART.MENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

TO: StatB'Treasur.er
R'E: ÄTHÈNA.älbl; HO,UF.BioÑ.REIiEWAL,.LLO

Fiie: tJ 826
An Uib.an' Renewal Entity

"

ThIS.IS ,to oe.i!y tlBt th~ attphoo'GGRTlfl.CA-rE'O.F FORMATION OF AN UABi\N
ReNEWAl: EN1ITVJllÍ5 besn.(IKllminad,ard.apPrQved by'lhå Depaiiment of .Communlt Alfalni.
pursuant tö the powe"r ~J1!ltedìn:U i.?o,r the Pl.ong"Tann Tax Eicempl10n LaW'," P .to. 1991. o.iS1,

pone this ..1":- day of .5p¡~2ot1 at Trenton, New Jimmy.

DI:PMTMENT OF (jb~MUNITY AFFAIRS

ay

I i

i.

Nrll JrrJ'J'IJr .1., aq"", 0/'l'"1irnlty t:i"l'llJl\'r" l'r/nrnt '""IU't.'lttl rnW'" rIm) n~r~~'liib'r



CERTJCATE OF FORM110N

OF
FILED

~.2ß ZOOl J

. STATE TREASURER
AtherCl.BWG 110 Urban Renewa.I.-LC

To: Depamneni of 1he T;.easury
. Stare of Ni!ll JeriftJ

11 UNDERSIGNE, fot th purpose, of Jonning a Limitf!d I;iabilTo
Compan pur.ruanNo the provision¡ ojNJSA 42:2B..l it seq.. t~e Nm .Jersey Llintêd
Liabllty aompàri..ct, 'hereby .accrues the lo!1owng Cer.fieae oj 1?omion.

J. Th name ?Jf rJi~ LfmiteCl Liabllty c.ompcu is

Arh¿na J.G'JIQ UrbaTÌ Rweli 1:C

"2, The adress oftlJe initial registered pJfce.ofihe company In the Stare 01 New
.Jerse; is

cld Kraemr¡ Bums. MyteIka. Lò¡Jé1 & KUlk, P.A..
'.6,75 Morr Avemie, Sprfn8feld. New.Je.rsey 07081

an the nome of the tnidal rerrüsreiJ af/tnt for senJce. of process at tlwt
adrMs fs. .

Aihena BWG 110 Urban.Rentral, J¡C

3. Tiie c;:mipat 1ø one or more meer.$.

4. Duraton:' peretual

$. ~e limited lfabiliy cqmpany has pern orgaized t() serve a pulic purpose; it

operations shall be. dJreeted lòWri providing for an mang POJs(ó1e tlle c!ew(lcct
re-jlan/l1g, i/ëlQpmenr, "7 redevelopment of bTirltied iJTem or the acquisiton,
maagemnt and Op'eration of a proJdcf under rlu ComprehelliVe HousiniJ.qi .

Redtnelopment ''£ong Ten fox Exemption ia" p.L. 1991, c. 491 (NJ.S.A. 40.A,'2() .1, er seq.) . ,



... ~,

1'114 pUlose.jor wÎi~h :rt"Js forr~d. s1mve to operas' r.r. P.L. 1991., c. "1$1

(e. ïf;4r2tJl ti'seq.) alU/'o .lii1aip -a'co~r.-proJl!ttsjer. the r.edwelopment of-a
rMevilop111"ote'i1ptlrRi l/l 't reèki!opm.j.ii or prfJer: p.ecessaty usWù. or

dotWentenr¡r:;he r~Iq~t?ri nJret1~'dlsp1ded àr.lD~b't dLrrac~d If.l"'1 reelopme of
011 orparr r1 ant ~r. ~te,n~ev!'àP~ ~eiÜ1 i?t'J? ~4 .frr~..time hcriS p'roj~et.
an~ .when ciof/ta'?7 jir;~ o~grat wfrll tl,Il.~fclpfJìtJ...IO,~epre, p.~' tIslQp,
çi:mstrlli:i øfer~ ,mantoi,:ór-opera!J 1WU$g; .scior oifi(m :1io~ng. 'bimS, ìrusof,
ccn1I;a!~ adùfi;"t!1 communilj. htth, recrlUiPIU. edonnJ or we1jp.rcle.r;li
øl't1 comblTlain1láJftWf).ar. rn,:.:O/iJiWB.iyPff- oJ.irirøvemn#" in a tlng1e proJe~l. Üncrr

. ~uch.,ç()ruitòii.d$.io tJ~; òWiUlllilp, maem wr conrrol arregrilitø'prir.ii .to 1':L.
19911 c.4S1(CA0,4:2()1 'et.sè!,'

SD Ìò~g ap 17w 'entfj is .ofmgplei under¡fmal'rigr.en.With a mwcfpal/t mii~
purSUclnÒQ P.'L. .JP~l, ú43;.rC.4lJiJ:2o..l a. S!9:). II simU engage 11,..no bii -óihèf tMn
rh(! ~¡ajJl' ope,øton år nitig~ ofthe.f?tojtCt.

~ I!niJr .Jw,.:eeni or;gàJlzCd'fb ~e~ .a'pllllr::purpC1s~; It, ~lmadóns 1fw1 beAJ1reçfed
.tow (i) r&,;Tednirilinnt.ol tYd4eJj.mmt: iireíi, 'hefacIUl1I uJ !M' ra1OÍ;1'~ oj

rtsl~ d.Jp.cr~4:Qt'o'.~e'd4Ptiedb) te~lopmfmt, or the c,cmdtr. ()t~ ar mt:e

iricotM lI~ir1fg pijj~~s.r l2J 17lf; -acqulšlHim. mmgtn11.. oJ' 0Ré,aJoir ;oJ-u. PTVJttl,
red,yelØ'pniT1.:ttr9.i:n :h~nn l'ra~eet, or lo dn lrrr~ itt~ lwuiitg-töJee: iiar
P.L. .1 !1JUs . rr ifJl.flN!OÒ,æiJ4 o'er ~e4.1/ t: (3) It 4ltlllJ ~ldect rp 7Jgu1ol' ~' t/æ

. muc!lft ~owmi:1i lTS.pr.oJeeNs iltm . tv:ii7 ci ,liiiaion crptoJtfblfalJ i: W'p70-P~è;

Off pnJfits:IJr rJyJ8ëni:s,!ir, MJ.lqng..ti itreitiM tM ower of a project subject to P.L. 1991.
C,4ilJrCi40AZo.t e1 $èg;)

. Th,en.,fhan 1I'9't ,,!J!-funriLY'Jr nrort tha 10% .ofrht __/lt af I1 prò/tcl
l?r tù p'ortò,r'iliriJQfU!~rt~;~ iJ trr4""p..i..r~91" c.131 (C.40A.1Z'O'1 et se.q.), urI-l
ha.;tri.TQ1eèl' bot"':l(S'eJ(ari rltepr.eatfrm all r.eaeta!' pj PÆ.. .1~9i,

c..431 (C.4DÀ,t20..i ct oJel¡.) W rhe:7tet r.qired by PiLi 1991., c. 4$1.(~HOÀ:2l)1 et seq,)
an,' if t~.1S. ptoJl:ilncluä~if.hQrirrrI;li!bl '~ 'obtaIned the consen at the OomJrlo1Uf of
ao~rmity 4ff.rJn.$Uc1uran~r; .wi tJ-i!cedon'çi'tru to .aoihLr JJan -tene

~~' c: .iIPJ"ovelk1l lti..mtiipflftY in w1iél (M proj~C1 tr i'1tuaed~, wfdch .oilr'w:'

roèw Mdt¡ .~fi1 atsm~ .alt CP~ o.1)lIgatòns f)tbl iratrr ei ii:tk

Jf't iJgteep: ~th 'rlie nJ$d1ii;. 11l'.en shiU ftïe in wrck.'t~ muclal,
s.ovtJ?ø b~ a dI~()I()Ur cfWf Pl~8oru-htvl.~ owr~lt1l rnt~st 1i th ptaJøct¡ ri if
the ~t', O¡I/f.~~1f _ fJMl$'ri'MCIi $~ /u ~hall pro1d/ilì an trr ofthë
rJ~/fp' inr:Sr rn :t¥ f.tm'r~lßntilj i'!t1lfrov.ded tht tl trw~rl tJcnar.er.lhan

t 0 p'UC~1i, ls dilØltâ ~() "Ju mwiçjpal goverfg boil in rhe ri àlJ"ëwsure miemen orm, i;ol70rience tOn' 10 tM tr~dper1t)"ln adee £fiJ ~ disc/Quro &tafl!réfrr 10 àbe .

, .

i
"

!



. .:

me. enty is'$újl!CI Of thep,rovl$ons oj Secton. 18 of P.L.19!Jl, c.431 t
(C.4f:20-18) r8,rpeetnk the J(0wers'q! th~ munclpallty tl) aUevJateftnancial ,
d(1culJes lJfthu¡r.blU r.~new1 entity cr ICJ.p'erfonn aCJions on behiT/'oj.th-e entity
upoJl a deternnaDn offinanclal,emer-geTlIY.

. An)' housrria unlts con:rt-rcre.d'oracljuJred óy tba entlty,.rnall be ma~ged .

'siij.r(; TO tliè ;rUpt:rV;son of, ai' ntla atpied l7, The Cnmml3slqner of CammityAfflJIr.r. '
The imrslgned rep."es~tis that tlU.r.Jling camplles v.th Sfaìe law as deailed

in NISA. 42 a1Û.t1ù sh'e ~ 'auh.o.mea'tD sign t'hfs1ó,rm on :behaTftithe LI1fred

Uobilty ,Company.

Dated: ~f/ °7

.¡

"
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EXIIT5

ESTIMTED CONSTRUCTION SCHEULE

It is curently projected that, following execution of the Financial Agreement,

construction wil commence in July, 2008. The Project is expected to take 36 months to

complete and occupancy is projected for June, 2011. The constrction schedule is

subject to modifcation based on any presently unforeseen circumstances.

500272
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E:xITF
GOOD F.ATHLEASE ESTIMTES

The following is a good faith estimate of the initial rents to be achieved from the Project.

A. REENTIAL.. MARKT

427 Ùnits (357,856 sf net rentable (g $42/sf) $15,029,962

B. RESIDENTIAL - AFFORDABLE

25 One Bedroom (f $820/month $246,183/anum

C. RETAIL

16,597 ~quare feet & $44/square foot $730,268/ anum

D. PARKING

343 Spaces (g $175/nionth $720,300/annuni

495494113
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i-ii~08
PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRCTING AGREEMENT.'

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on the 1 ih day of June ,

2008,between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY (City) and 
ATHENA BLDG 110 URBAN

RENEWAL, LLC, having its principal offce at 712 Fift Avenue, Eiglith Floor, New York,
NY 100~9. Recipient agrees as follows:

1. Definitions:

The following words and tenns, when used in this agreement, shall have the following
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1, "Citi~ means the Business Administrator of the City of Jer~ey City, or his designee,

including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in
whole or in part, this agreement. .

2. "Construction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or
demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project
Site.

3. "Contractor" means ány party performing or offering to perform a prime contra'ct on

behalf of the Recipient.

4. "DEO" means the Division of 
Economic Opportnity under the Department of

Administration, located at 121-125 Newark Avenue, Jersey City, NJ 07302, Telephone
#(201) 547-5611. DEO is in charge of 

Project Employment & Contracting coordination

and monitoring on projects receivlng abatements. .

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a propert or project

which requires approval ofthe Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount
of taxes otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate;

6. "Employment'l means any job or position during the constrction and operational phase
of the project. It includes positions created as a result of internal promotions,
terminations, or expansions within the Recipient1s work force which are to be filled by
new employees. However) positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's
existing work force are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

8. Mayqr Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEO

under the Departent of Admiistration responsible for collecting local and minority
business contracts and capabilty infoonation. This group operates the Supplier Alert
servce which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting
and construction subcontracting goals.



.1
9. IIMinoriti' means a person who is Mrican, Hispanic, Asian, or Americån Indian defied

as follows:

a) "Afican~Americanll means a person having origins in any of the black racial

groups of Africa.

b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South
American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding,
however, persons of European origin.

c) "Asianll means a person having origins in any of the original.people of the Far
East, Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands.

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the oiiginal people of
North America who maintains cultural id~ntifcation through tribal affiliation or
community recognition.

10. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Businessll means a bona fide business located in
Jersey City which is fift-one (51 %) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.

11. . ''Non~Traditional Jobsll means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market,

and Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be ~11 fie with the City
Clerk.

12. "Permanent Jobsll mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporary, part time or seasonaL.

13. "Project or Project Site" means the specifc work location or locations specified in the

contraet.

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator" is a member ofthe DEO staff

under the Department of Administration who is in charge of coordinatig Project

Employment & Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects

covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements wil direct inquiries to the
Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator.

15. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is a member of 
the DEO

staff under the Departent of Admistration directly under the command of the Project
Employment & C.ontracting Coordinator, who is in charge ofmonîtoring the site,
collecting the report:; and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment &
Contractig housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement

;:..
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.' 16. The "Project Employment & Contracting Offcer" or "Officer" is an employee of the
Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in
compliance with the Recipient's Project Employment & Contracting agreement.

17. "Recipient" means any individual, parership, association, organization, corporation or

. other entity, whether public or private, or for profit ornon-profit, or agent thereof, which
receives an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent
of the Recipient.

18. "The"Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the

City or its designee of Jersey City residents seeldng employment and Local Businesses,
including Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts. .

19. II Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving perfonnance of a contract that

is part of a prime contract.

20. IISubcontractorll means a tWrd par that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perfonn

under a subcontract all or par of the work included in an original contract.

21. "Substantial Completion" means the detemination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the use intended) which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of
the Project.

II. Purpose:

The City wishes to assure contiuing employment opportnities for City residents,
paricularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportties for Local Businesses,
especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or
relocating to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined
to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good
Faith, as de:fned herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent
mandated by State and Federal law and SO long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith
obligations under this agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors
are free to hire whomever they choose.

Il. Good Faith Goals: ..

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the
goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the tenn of tWs agreement, the
Recipient wil not be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth
in Section VII., A-L (Constrction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A-J (Peranent Jobs). All goals for
Construction Jobs shall be calculated as a percentage of the total number of work hours in each
trade from the beginning of the project to its completion.

1. . Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a
work force representing fift-one (51 %) percent City residents, fift-one (51 %) percent of whom

3



are residents who are Minorities and) in Non-Traditional Jobs, six. point nine (6.9%) percent of
whom are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more
than one category.

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty-
one (51 %) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. Iffifty~one

(51 %) percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot qe obtained, that
percentage of contracts must still be applied to local vendors.

iv. Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal offcer of its fin to be responsible for,

administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to
. discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined' 

in this agreement. This offcer should be

designated as the Project Emproyment & Contracting Offcer.

, The Recipient should send a letter òf introduction regarding the "Project Employment &
Contracting Compliance Offcer" to the project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to
any preconstrction meetings; An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This
principle offcer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a Jetter regarding the "Project Employment & Contracting
, Compliance Offcer!) to the employees oftbe Recipienes company. An example ofthis lettercan be fo~nd in Appendix. AZ .
V. Term:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period oftlie
tax exemption (the Economic Incentive). Thus, it wil commence on the date the City Council
adopted Ordinance 08-074 approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 14 years
from the date of the adoption of that Ordinance or 10 years from the date of Substantial
Completion of the Project:

VI. Good Faith Defined:

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of 

the following

conditions:

A. Initial Manning Report:

i) Prior to the commencement of 
their work on the Project, each Contractor

¡Subcontractor shall prepare an Intial Maning Report.

ii) The Initial Manning Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each

construction trade or craf and the number of 
hours to be worked by City

4



residents, including a list of 
the number of minority residents and women

residents that wil work in each trade or craft, including the work hours to be
perfoimed by such employees of any and all Contractors and Subcontractors.
Attached hereto as Appendix B is the RecipienCs Initial Manning Report.

iii) The Initial Manning Report shall be fied with the Project Employment and

Contrac'tng Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient entering
into any constrtion contract. An example of this accepta1ce letter is given in
AppendixC.

B. Developer's Contracting Obligations

i) Once the developer submits the project's initial manning report) he/she must

forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Jerramiah T, Healy's
Business Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any
constructlon or building operating goods) services and sub-contracting
opportnities. An example ofthIs letter is given in Appendix D.

ii) The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and

individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which wil
be sent to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program at DBO
under the Department of Administration. An example of this letter cån be found
in Appendix D2.

C. Contractor's/Subcontractor1s Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor
must agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated
herein. An'example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E.

D. Union Statement of 
Using Its Best Efforts

i) Prior to commencement of 
their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor

must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &
Contracting Agreement to each union with which he/she has a collective
,bargainig agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

ii) The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular
union to sign, which claims the 'union wil use its best effoits to comply with the
employment goals articulated in the Project Employment & Contracting
agreement. This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the
signed compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor in DBO under the Department of Administrtion before

work starts in order for a developer to be in compliance.
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Hi) The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the
City of any refusal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union

. refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient wil document its efforts to obtain such
statement and the reasons given by the unon for not signing such statement, and
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in
DEO under the Departent of Administration.

E. Sub-Contractors

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance
ofbis/ber subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contractig
requirements during the perfonnance of the contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a
portion of the work on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations
contained in these supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

F. Union Apprentices

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account
for at least fift (50%) percent of 

the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each

trade listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to-joumey-worker
ratio contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions) and shall hold
each ofhislher subcontractors to thís requirement. The Recipient wil require the contractor or

. subcontractor to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilze resident and
minority apprentices. .

G. Monthly Manning Report

i). The Recipient wil cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project

Manning Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEO
under the Departent of Administration by the seventh day of the month
following the month during which the work is performed) for the duration of the
contract.

ii) The report wil accurately reflect the total hours in each constrction trade or craft

and the number of hours worked by City residents) including a list of the number
of minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and wil
list separately the work bours performed by such employees of the Contractor and
each of its Subcontractors durig the previous month. The MontWy Manning
Report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix G.

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain

records supportng the reported work hours of 
its Contractors or

. Subcontractors.

H. Monthly Certified Payroll Report
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i) The Recipient wil cause the Contractor to furnish the Project Employment &
Payroll report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix H.

Contr

ii) Payroll repOlts must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manning

Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance.

1. Equal Employment Opportnity Reports

Prior to commencement of 
work on the Project, the Recipient wil request copies of 

the

most recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Infonnation Report (EEO-2)
which are required to be fied with the US Commission of 

Equal Employment Opportnity

Commission by the collective bargaining unit These reports wíl be forwarded to the Project
. Employment & Contractig Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment
& Contracting Agreement.

J. ptber Reports

In addition to the above report, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other
documents to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carr out the
purposes of this agreement.

K. Records Access

The Recipient wil insure that the City wil have rtasonable access to all records and fies
reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the infonnation provided in the reports.

. L. . Work Site Access For Monitor

i) The City wil physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify

the accuracy ofthe monthly report. Each work site wil be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed
reasonably necessar by the City. The City's fidings shall be recorded in a "Site
Visit Report." An example ofa bi~weekly site visit report can be found in
Appendix 1.

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contrctor and Sub~contractor to cooperate with

the Cityis site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are
working at the Project site. This includes specifcally instructing the on-site
constrction manager about the'inonitoring process, and informing him/her that
the monitor wil contact him/her to set up an initial meeting. In the case of
projects with multiple locations, the Recipient shall inform the City ofthe dates
they are working at each site location(s) where they are working, in order to
faciltate the monitoring. .

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of 

the following

conditions:
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A. Pre~hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring ofa Recipient's
pennanent workforce) the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient wil sit
down with the head ofthe Registr to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its pennanent
workforce. The following issues should be covered in this meeting:

i) whether subcontractors wil be used in the hiring process.
ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.
ii) the qualifications needed for these partcular jobs.
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient's goals and how it plans to meet these goals.
vi) any other issues which need to ~e addressed by the Registry.

1. Subcontractor Notification -- Ifthe Recipient decides to subcontract any porton or all of

its permanent workforce) then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the
subcontracting party that it wil abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement
before said subcontractor begins staffng permanent employees. The Recipient must foiward a
copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An
example of this signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E.

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting u Each subcontractor hired to staf

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contrcting Offcer to meet with
the head oÚhe Registr to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I-vi).

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the

same requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A.

B. Documentation of Hing Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken
place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future penn 

anent

employment needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring
Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment
goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the
Recipient plans to meet thèse goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix 1.

C. Pre-Hiring Notifcation: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the Registiywith a
written notice, which shall state the job title) job description and ninimum qualifications, rate of
pay) hours of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled) in qualitative and objective
terms which wil enable the Regitr to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

D. AdveitIsement: At the reqest ofthe City) or because the City does not have qualified
applicants to refer to the Recipient) the Recipient wil place an advertisement for the jobs in a
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Departent of Administration with a
copy of this advertisement.

8
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E. PrewHiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is
required) the Recipient agrees to interew any qualified persons responding to the ,
advertisement.

F. Semi~Annual Employment Reports: The Recipient wil submit written semiwannual
employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be
provided by the City. The report wíl describe the job; whether the job is held by a City resident,
minority resident or woman resident. The report wil explain in writing the reasons why any
qualified applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertsement is required, any
qualified person responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of 

this report is

found in Appendix K.
G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all fies
and records including payron and personnel information reasonably necessary to confinn the
accuracy ofthe information set forth in the semiwammal reports.

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the
site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of tbe information set fort in the

semi~annual report.

1. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish
such reports or other documents that the City' may request from time to time in order to
implement the pmposes of this agreement.

J. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of 

this

Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service,
maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose
personnel wil be assigned to the Recipient project.

3. Business Contracting

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of 
the followig conditions:

1) Solicitation of 
Businesses:

a) One month before acceptig bids for goods and services, the Recipient must
forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's
Business Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any
constction or building operating goods, services and subcontracting

opportties. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix D.

b) After submission of 
bids, the Recipient wil document whether the bid was

accepted or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of 

this documentation

can be found in Appendix D2.
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i) Semi-Annual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient wil submit wrtten semi-

annual purchasing reports which wil include a list of all contracts
awarded over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these
contracts. The reports will specify the number and dOllflr amount of

. contrcts awarded to Local Businesses and Minority 01' Women Owned
Local Businesses. An example of these reports can be found in Appendix
L. .

ii) No Utilzation of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned:

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors
that are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Departent of
Administration of a Recipient) either knowingly or unknowingly, using the masthead of a local
or minority owned business as a wåy to get credit for local or minority employment when it
should not~ wil immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Secti9ti-¥II (d)
beloyv.

4. Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement

1. Letter Designating Project Employment & Contracting Offcer (Appendix A)

2. . Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient's Employees

(App.)AZ
3. Example ofInitial Manning Report (Appendix B)

4. Letter Of Acceptance of 
Initial Manning Report (Appendix C)

5. Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and

Residential Vendors from Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program
(Appendix D)

6. Documentation of 
Bid Submission (Appendix D2)

7. Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractorsl

Subcontractors (Appendix E) .

8. Union Statement of 
Best Efforts (Appendix F) .

9. Example of 
Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G)

10. Example ofMontWy Certifed Payroll Report (AppendixH)
11. Example ofBi-Weekly Site Visit 

Report (Appendix I)

12. Example of Documentation of Hiing Plan (Appendix J)

13. Example of Semi~Annuai Employment Report (Appendix K)

14. Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L)

VII. Notices of Violation: .

1. Advisory Notice: The City wil issue a wrtten Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there

is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defiIled in this agreement. The
Advisory Notice shall explai in suffcient detai1 the basis ofthe alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an
Advisory Notice can be found in Appendix M.
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2. . Violation Notice: Tfthe alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been

corrected to the satisfaction of the City withn four (4) working days, the City shal then
issue a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in su.ffcient
detaii the basis of the alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient wil have three (3)

working days to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in
AppendÍìt N.

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may

be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and
so advises the City in writing, subject to confinnation by the City.

4. Extension of 
Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice

may be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if 

the Recipient enters into

satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to
achieve compliance. IfRecipienLfils to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation wil be considered not corrected.

5, Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportnity for a meeting

with the Recipient, hi Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achiev~ compliance;
or may respond to Recipients request for a meeting after the Recipient has ma.de timely
submission of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be
requested no later than two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written
explanation.

6. Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request

additional infonnation from appropriate paries as is considered necessar to determine
whether the alleged violation has occured.

7. Detennnation ofViolatioii: The City shall issue a determnation of 

whether the Recipient

is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirt days .after the
delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the Cíty detenuines that the
Recipient is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated dame.ges provided
below.

VI. Liquidated DamageslInterest:

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material
breach of the above tenn and conditions, the partes agree that damages for violations of this
agreement by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical
certinty. Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any of the

above tenus and conditions and after notice and expiration of any perod to correct the vioiation,
'the City will be entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts:

a) failure to fie Initial Manning Reports (Constrction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring

Notification (Permanent Jobs) or Pre--ontracting Notification (Business
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Contracting): an amount equal to a Five (5%) percent increase in the estimated
annual payment in lieu of taes;

b) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement

(Constrction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): an amount equal to
Thee (3%) percent increase i,n the estimated annual payment in lieu oftaxes;

c) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other requred reports

(all categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated
annual payment in lieu of 

taxes.

d) the use of the local or local minority business 

i masthead for labor or work

.supplied by a non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Five (5%)
percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes. Interest shall
be charged on any damages at the legal rate of interest as calculated by the Tax
Collector.

'e) the late payment of any liquidated sum shaH accrue interest at the rate of8%.

IX. Commercial Tenants .at the Project Site:

i. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a

letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as
Appendix O.

2. The Recipient shall solicit infoiiation from tenants of co:rmercial space about

the composition Of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited wil

be submitted" to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitori which shall
provide the Recipient with a questionnaire in the fonn attached as Appendix. P.

3. The Recipient wil send the results ofits solicitation to the Project Employment &

Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year.

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a

Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the fonn attached as Appendix Q.

X. Notices

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either part to the other, shall be sent by
certfied mail i return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to:

12



The Athena Group
712 Fifth Avenue
Eighth Floor
New York, New York 10019

and

Joseph G. Ragno, Esq.
Waters, McPherson, McNeil~ P.C.
300 Lighting Way
Seventh Floor

Secaucus, New Jersey 07096

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor
Department of Administration
Division of Economic Opportnity
121-125 Newark Avenue
3rd Floor.
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in
wr!ting.

XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take. effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by
the Municipal CounciL.

XII. Controllng Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its
Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the
Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If thts agreement conflcts
with any collective bargaining agreèment, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as
the Recipient provides the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective
bargaining agreement.

.' ~ .~O~
RoîJne (J
City Clei'k

ATTEST:

Bri O'Reily
Business Administrator

13
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ATHNA BLDG 110 URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

BY, ~nrr ~
500805

" ,
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Kenneth Browne
110 FIRST STRT PROJECT
c/o THATIA GROUPt LLC
1776 Broadway, Suite 606
New York, NY 10019

APPENDIX A

RB: DESIGNATION O:F PRomCT BMPWYMNT & CONTCTG OFFCER ("PECO")
110 FIST STRT PROJECT

APPENDIX A 

Attention: All Employees

P. Angelique Morrison, of Crescent Consultig, has been retained and appointed the
Project Employment & Contractig Offcer, under the diect supervision of Kenneth Browne
for the 110 First Street Project. Ms. Morrson wil handle all complaints and notices -

regarding noncompliance with the Good Faith Effort goal as stipulated in the Project
Employñent & Contracting Agrement dated on between 110 First
Street Project and the City of Jersey City.

Ms. Morrson can be reached by telephone at (201) 984-1022. Her offce address is
as follows:

Crescent Consulting - N ew Jersey

123 Town Square Place, #436
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310

Kenneth Browne

xc: Project Employment & ConlIactig Monitor
Division' of Ecnomic Oppoit

110 First Street

Site



Kenneth Browne
110 FIST STRT PROJECT

C/o TaATHNA GROUP, LLC
1776 Broadway, Suite 606
New York, NY 10019.

APPENDIXAZ

RE: DESIGNATION OF PROJECT EMPLOYMNT & CONTRACTIG OmcER To RECipmNT'S

EMPLOYES
110 FiST STRET PROJECT

ApPBNDixAZ

Attention: All Employees

P. Angelique Morrson, of Crescent Consulting, has been retaied and appointed the
Project Employment & Contracting Officer, under the direct supervision of Kenneth Browne for
the 110 First Street Project. Ms. Morrson wil handle all complaints and notices regarding

noncompliance with the Good Faith Effort goal as stipulated in the Project Employment &
Contractig Agreement dated on . between 110 First Street Pr.oject and theCity of Jersey City. .

Ms. Morrson can be reached by telephone at (201) 984-1022. Her offce address is as
follows:

Crescent Consulting - New Jersey
123 Town Square Place, #436
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310

Kenneth Browne

xc: Project Employment & Contracting Monitor
Division ofBconomic Opportuity

110 First Street

Site



For Offce Use Only

Form JCPE-1
Rec'd

5/98 INITlALPROJECT MAING REORT- CONSTRUCTION
By

Action

RE INSTRUCTIONS ON BA.CK CAREFULLY BEFORE CPMPLETING THI FORM

(1) Name & address of 
prime contractor:

(3) Project # Date of Contract Award
n11tt

5tei~dlrc.n

Contract # Dolar Amoimt
01') .I:i~ til't.de

(2) MBE i i WEE r J (4) Name & location of 
Project 

(5) iotal number of Employees Total Min. & Fem. JC Employees Jersey City Projected Projected

Trade or Craft -~ -----_..... Residents phase-in completion
Total Minority :Female Minority Femai~- da.te date

01 Asbestos Worker

02 Bricklayer or Mason

03 çarpenter

0+ Electrcian
0. r

05 Glazier

06 HVAC Mechanic

07 Ironworker

08 OperatInJ! Engineer

09 Paiter

10 Plumber

11 Roofer

12 Sheet Meta Worker

13 Sprinkler Fitter

14 Steam Fitter

15 Surveyor

16 Tiler

17 Truck Driver

18 Laborer

19 Other

20 Other

21 Other

22 Other

(6) Completed by

Date:_/~_



Appendix B-2

Instrctions for completing Intial Project Manning Report - Construction

1. Enter prim~ contractor's name, address, and zip code.

2. Enter project number.

3. Enter name and location (street address) of project; if multiple sites, so state.

4. Total number of employees; for each trade or craft enter estimated number of persons
in the work force of the prime contractor and all subcontrctors, including females;

under female enter ~ticipated numb~r of females.

b) Total Jersey City resident employees: for each trade or craft enter estimated number

of Jersey City residents in the total work force of prime contactol' and all
subcontractors.

a)

c) Total Jersey City miority and female residentemployees: for each trade or craft

enter estimated number of Jersey City residents in the total work force of prie

contractor and all subcontractors.

d) Enter projected phase-in and completion dates.

5. Prit or type the name of the company official or authorized Project Employment & Contracting

coordiator, and title, telephone number and date; the official must sign.



APPENDIXC

Letter of Acceptance of Intial Mannng Report

Project Employment & Contracting Officer
Company
Street .
City, State, Zip

Attn: Project Employment & Contracting Officer

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please be advised that I have reviewed and accepted your Intial Manning Report dated

You are hereby notified that you must forward a letter with requests for quotation of bid to the
Division of Economic Opportunity for local business Land local miority constrction vendors.

A copy of a briefig for corporate parcipants is attached. This is also a sample of a cover sheet
than can be customized for your fi.

TruyYouls

Project Employment & Contractig Monitor

cc: Joseph Iwuala, Director .
Division of Economic Opportity



AppendiD

Letter from Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and
Residential Vendors from Division of Econoiic Opportunity;

Division of Economic Opportunity
121-125 Newark Avenue, 3idFl.
Jersey City, NJ 07306

Attn: Mr. Joseph Iwuala

Dear Mr. Iwuala:

The poHcy of (your companis name) is to utilize local and local minority vendors where
and whenever possible. Therefore, we are forwai'ding requests for quotations or bids for
local and local rrnority vendors to full the following needs as denoted by our intialmanning repoit: . .

Goods Labor

1. Concrete

2. Pipe

3. Mortar

4. Etc.

1. Carenters

2. Plumbers

3. Bricklayers

4. Etc.

Yours trly,

Your Project Employment & Contracting Officer

Your Company's Name and Address

Site



Appendix D-2

Documentation of Bid Submission

-Division of Economic Opportunity
121-125 Newark Avenue, 3td Fl.
Jersey City, NJ 07302

Dear Mi'. Joseph Iwuala:

We have just completed the bidding process. The following is a list of all those who
submitted bids, whether we accepted the bids, and, if we rejected the bid, the reason why.

Jersey City Contract Submitted Bid Bid Accepted Reas~n Bid Rejected

John's Electrical Yes No Too Low 

Dave's Electrcal No No NA
Ed) s E1ectiica1 Yes Yes NA
Tom's Electrcal Yes No Too Low 

Pete's Plumbing No NA NA

Yours try,

(Your Project Employment Contracting Offcer)
(Job Site)



APPENDixE

Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to
Contractors/Subcontractors

The President of the C~mpany or Project Employment & Contracting Compliance Officer must
send this letter to the subcontractors by certified mail with Return Receipt Requested, and
subsequently send copies to Crescent Consulting - New: Jersey, 123 Town Square Place - #436,
Jersey City, N.J. 07310. Attention: P. Angelique Morrson. '

(Date)

"còiltlåctôr~¡šhbc:Òntractõrs
i:á'.Måiii St~~et' , " .

P~~t6ýliÚ NJ ".

:Rr:i.iiM óF:PR6ÌÈci.~jËR.šÊY ëiiy)~i

Gentlemen:

(Name of your company) is legally obligated to abide by the ters of the Project
Employment & Contracting Agreement. TQ this end, we request that you maxime Jersey
City residential and local minority partcipation whenever and wherever poSsble.
Furhermore, we' ask that you do everything in your power to increase-the number of local
minorities and Jersey City residents who work on the job site. .

Thank 'you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

John Doe

(President of Your company or Project Employment & Contracting Officer)

Acknowledgment by Subcontractor:

I hereby acknowledge that I have read the above and agree to 'comply with the
obligation and responsibilties aforementioned.



June 17,2008

(Contact Person) .
(Title)
(Company Name)
(Company Address Line 1)
(Company Address Line 2)

RE: WASHIGTON F:æST PLAZA URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT
EMPLOYMENT AN CONTRACTING AGREEMENT
REQUET TO UNIONS

Dear (Contact Person):

In analyzing your workforce at the above-referenced project and reviewing the
requirements set forth in the Jersey City Deparment of Bconollc Opportnity

Employment and Contracting Agreement, please be -advised that (Company Name)'s
workforce sliows an undeiutilization of Jersey City Residents, Minorities and/or Women.

The attached Sample Letter is required to be submitted by your fir to your Local

Union when underutilzation of Jersey City Residents, Minorities and Women has been
identified in your workorce. This letter must be sent Monthly with copies to my office
for every month that you do not meet the Jersey City Deparent of Ecnomic
Opportunity Local Resident, Minority and Women wortiolce goals.

Faiure to submit this document to your Local Union on a continuous basis can

result in the withholding of future requisition payments. .

Upon your review, if you have any questions, please contact me at (201) 984"
1022.

Sincerely,

P. Angelique Morrson
Senior Project Manager

Enclosure:
cc: E. Geetloff (H)

J. Fusco (H
R. de Freitas (Crescent)
File



APPENDixF

Letter Expressing Contractors/Subcontractor Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to
the Unions.

The President of the company must send this letter to the unions by certified mai with retuin
receipt requested, and subsequently send .copies to Crescent Consulting New Jersey, 123 Town
Square Place - #436, Jersey City, N.J. 07310, Attention: P. Angelique Morrson.

Büs:Ìess Agent
I.ö~al uiùön UOÒ
123'. 'Ei:h..Sti:~et .

Town':N' .'1 ......_..... ,.

~; .:.:... NÅ' ÒF PRO~CT'': jÊRSEY' CITY, N:('..~.' :':.: ,::sIT # :; . ',. ~~' ". ",:'. '.

Gentlemen:

(Name of your company) is legally obligated to abide by the terms of the Project
Employment & Contractig Agreement. We have agreed with the City that we wil attmpt to
employ'as many qualified Jersey City residents and local minorities as we possibly could.

To this end, we earestly solicit your help in attempting to achieve these goals. May we
coùnt on you in this matter?

Please acknowledge your intentions in this matter and indicate whether or not your
policies and practices wil be consistent with the above-mentioned goal.

Thank you for your attention to ths matter.

Sincerely, Acknowledgement

1, as business agent for Local 000 hereby state
that I have read the above, and that my unionl
Local 000, agrees to comply with the
obligation and responsibilties aforementioned.

John Doe
President



dty .st."'l(C T.1J code Corrtr;t # Dollar- Amount

WBE( 1 (5) Nåme & location of Project

(1%or (8) Tradcl ('J)Tolol Numb or JC re.idcnt! I minorlty employcM (lQ) '10"1 (IIP'otd (12) Work Hour.

with &ubcntl.elor work Cr.f\of EmploJcc
Number JC
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.il..l\ov,l "vl'''......A.J.ç, tv...L..~ v-b4.......a.....b --..- -....-.....0 ----- -- ---- _.....-...... ..... .. '.1; . .

. Enter pt'oject number and project information.

Enter name and location (street address) of project

Contractol' Name: enter prime contractor first, and contractor's work force infonnation; then names of
subcontractors who worked on project during the reporting period, and each contractor's work force
infonnatian.

Enter the % of the work the contractor or subcontractor has completed

List the trades or crafts applicable to the prime contractor and each sub; use a separate line for each trade orcraft. .
a. Enter total number of employees for each employed for each craft at each level (J or AP or TR-

trainee).

b. Enter total number of Jersey City resident Black-employees (including female) for each at each leveL.

c. Enter number of Jersey City resident IDspanc employees (including female) for each.at each leveL.

d. Enter number of Jersey City resident American Indian or Alaskan native employees (including

female) for each at each leveL.

e. Enter number of Jersey City resident Asian employees (including female) for each at each leveL.

f. Enter number of Jersey City resident female employees for each at each level; include both minority

and non-minority females. .

Total number of minority employees: total of columns b, c, d and e. (Do not include non-minority
females).

Euter number of employees who are Jersey City residents.

a. Enter total work hours for each craft at each leveL.

b. Enter total Jersey City resident/minority work hours for each craft.

c. Enter total Jersey City resident/female work hours. for each craft at each leveL.

d. Enter total work hours for Jersey City residents.

Minority group females will be eoiin.ted in bot/i tlie minorit total and tli~ female total.

Print or type the name of the company offcial or authorized Project Employment & Contracting

Coordinator) and title, telephone number and date~ the offcial must sign.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
City of Jersey City

BI~WEEKLY SIE VISIT REPORT

COMPUANCE WIH PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

Project: #

Contractor:

Date of Vi.sit: Time: Location of Site:

Contractor's Representative at site:

Subcontractor(s) workig at site:

èlt;~7l~~ I~!~IJ ~~;'F~ W:1~:'1:~~\~frl~l~~~~;;jiJJ'i~t;È~ o~*~~

Tota Black Hisp. Am. Iud. 'l, Min,
Res,

Fern Tot.
reR. res

Mi
~:;:~\T~~ú-_ ,~;);::?rYT:!~~:,;,~;. J\~Y~'~:::':.,;.:.;:;~;F~,~:';-:: ~ '."~.¡

Comments/Notes:

Completed bySignatue of Contractor's Representative



Appendix J

Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan

Division of Economic Opportunity
121~125 Newark Avenue
Jersey CitYr New Jersey 07302

Dear Project Employment & Contracting Monitor:

This letter serves as our general hiring plan for the permanent employment needs of
(hotelr hospital, etc.) -

The following numbers áre estimates agreed to in our Pre-Hiring Meetln.g with the'
head of the Registry:

rt~~~fjr~
:Jr~~~;\~:~f' ~.':~t~' '~.~~' ~.l. ::,!k;~:~.t~11~~:

::~ii~~g~~~l'~t~;;.gJjJ~1¡~;
:.~~~~::~:.t~%~L~:;~Í:rl~;.~f/~:t.,.~".;.otal:Number ,.;:~ h

t~:.ft.~~tl~~.~;1~fi~~tr'i1t~!§;:

.¡;"l '....... ~ ~..,~,J 'i.Ç.-"t"" .¡" . .'...... .

. .:,: ;;"tf" ':~'''fLõ't t:;r.~íï :.%.,::~;.:.i.

J \..~.."'~'~:". r :/,'i!..~-t4.:"'( -¿?:. 'l:.".:.r......

,i'~MlnõrleVò'Vãfãll%!fl~:;r:..;. e~h.,Ve.r~ .'". o"/r':~ ..... ... ..Yi.~. ,. _.. '. .. ..'

Cooks 4 2/50% 1/25%

Waiters 6 2/33% 2/33%

Valets 3 2/67% 1/67%

Manager 1 1/100% 0/0%

Etc. - ~ -

Our company plans to meet these goals by seeking referrals from the Registry abd
advertising in the Jersey Journal.

Sincerely,

(Your Project Employment & Contracting Officer)
(Permanent Job Site)

xc: Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator



Appendix K

Total No. of Employees
Total No. of Job Titles

Project EmplOyrent & Contrectlng Monitor

Division of Economic Opportunity
121-125 Newark Avenue

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Dear Project Employment & Contracting Monitor:

ThIs report serves as our Semi-Annual Employment Report of (your company).

The following chart will describe the job and whather a City resident or a woman holds theJob. .
Job Title Job Description CIty

Resident
Mlnority
Resident

Woman Resident

Customer Service Responsible for

Representative providing gusts with
frlendly serice,
quality food and a:
accurte order

Laundry Attendant To practce proper
cae and handling of
linen and terry to

enance professiomi
service

Front Desk Clerk Responsibilities
include providing
Menel professIonal
service by
anticipatig guests

needs while

performing the
functon of the
check.inl check-out
process

The following Individuals referred by the Registry were not hired for the respective reasons:

The following individuals who responded to the advertisements were not hired for tl1e
respective reasons:

Yours truly,

Project Employment & Contracting Officer



APPENIXL

Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report

Semi-Annual Purchasing Report

Name & Address of
Prime Contractor Reporting Period

Contracts Name of Contract Date of Dollar
Awarded Business Numer Contract Amount of 

Award Contract
To Local Businesses

Total # awarded to Local
Businesses

,

To Minority or Women
Owned Local Businesses

Total # awarded to
Minority or Women
Owned Local Businesses



ExrrI

CONTRACTOR iS SUBCONTRCTINGfSUPPLlER PLAN
ISUMY OF BID SOLICITATION ACTIVY)

LIST THE SUBCONTRACT OPPORTIITJES, SupPUERlENPORS ANn/OR PROFESSIONAL SERVICI!(S). (USB ADDITlONÅL SHBET( s) IF NECESSARY)

lR~.fE.o/: :~:"::;:~':"::'. :..,,:-;:.....-..;.;..'..;.': :
.'0 th" o' ." . ."0 ~.:. ,0 ;".:" .

. .- .... .:. " L;:PLEAE TYE OR PRIT CONTMcr Á¥OtJx: $

NAM OF CONTRCfOR:

ADDIUS (STRlBT, CJT. STATE Zip):

CONTAC'PimSON(NAM &TrB) TiRPHONE#: ( )
. .~.~ :.:.:':' .... ,'. .:....:................. .': ......... . ~'. ........ ':. ..... 1:".-:":::.:' ::. ..::',:i. ¡"'t:". ~: :':":", ......: ".':: ,,'::;' :':. ,0: '4," ....'~1..:..._:.
.: .....' :' '::;..:' :." S~l?0.NJRÄC'rnns;: '; . ,:':,"': : ,:.,' -:N~rCATE...: '.: .:~" ~ 'lT.irv aR:. :;.:. ~J!.i:ßßÇBIvD ':' :. AYr li '... ¡ : ',:D.ATR ; ,:,.

;"::::'.:.:: './::~.;*IT:~~Mr:~t:(~.::~;./:/:..:.:. ::¡N!'.~~r.~S'; ~.:~::'.::.~~~~./~.~:: .:~n#.; ::::~~~Ê"~. ,': :.:.~~.~~:~.~,.. \::r~~~I:t'~

A WAR STATUS. AF EAaSUBCONTRCTR. SUPPLIE OR VENOR'S NAMB, PLACE AN "A" IPTH BID HAS BBEN AWA.BD ORA liP" WTß BID IS
PENING,

(USB ADDltioNAL PAPER IP NECESSARY.)

l'LEASEJ.SWER TH FOLLOWING QUESTOJlS:

1. Do YOUwrTO SlJCONl'RACl ANWORKQNTRIS PROJct? YES 0 NO 0

WBJT IS THTOTALDOLL AMOUNT OltDOLLAR RAGB YOU INTB TO SuaCON'mCl ON THIS PROJEC?

AMOUN$ ORRAoB: FROM$ 1'0$

2. Do YOU lN TO PURCHE SUPLms, MATERIA I\/OR VEOR OR PROFEIONAL S1Vl FOR. TilS PRomCT YES 0 NO 0

WaAT IS THB TOTAL AMOUN OR POLLAR RAOH OF YOURlNBD PURClJSES OJ'SUPLlB, MAERI, VEOR 
ORPROFESSlONAL SDRVlCES7

AMOUN $ OR RAGE: FROM $ TO$

INlCAUl BY DOLLAR VALUE IiP/OR l'ERCHNTAGI! OF CONTRAcr, TH TOTAL OIl YOUR GOAL FOR LoèAL (JERSEY CITY), MINORIT AND WOMl
SUBCONTClORS AN VENORS (T PImCENTAGE GIVEN SHOULD BRA PERCENTAGB OFYOUR TOTAL CONTR AMOUN)

LOCALBUSINSSBS. $ AMOUT %)

MIORlBUSINSSE . $ AMOUN %)

WOME BUSINSSES - $ AMOUN ( %)

OFFICER OF FI (NAM AN TITE) SIGNATUR DATE



..9 .



EXBIT9

, 'CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION COST
-

I, Peter DeWitt, A.I.A. do certify to the following:

I am a principle in the architectural firm úf DeWitt Tishman Architects, LLP. To
the extent that our fin has been involved in the design and constrction of the Land and
Improvements, as rnore fully described in that ~ertain Financial 'Agreement dated

as between Athena BLDG Urban Renewal 1 LLC. "and the City of Jersey

City, and based on those records and contracts that have been supplied to us by Athena
BLDG Urban Renewal, LLC, we certify that the total construction cost for the above
referenced project is $

I hereby certfy that the foregoin~ statements made by me are tre to the best of

my knowledge. I certify that the copies of the reports, records and statements annexed
hereto are exacf.lcopies of the report or reports rendered. I am aware that if any of the
foregoing statements made by me are wilfully false, I am subject to punishment.

Peter DeWitt

DATED:

500272



EXBITC



PREAYMNT AGREEMENT

THI AGREEMENT made this 17th day of ~une ,2008 and entered into

between ATHENA BLDG 110 URAN REW AL~ LLC~ an Entity fonned under the

provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of (the "Law"), havig its principal

office at 712 Fifth Avenue, Eighth Floor, New York, NY 10019, hereinafer referred to as

(Entity) and the CITY OF JEEY CITY, a muncipal corporation of the State of New

Jersey, having its principal offce at 280 Grove Street, Jersey Ci.t, New Jersey 07302,

hereinafer referred to as the (City).

WITNESSETH:
WHREAS, Entity has been authonzed by the City to construct a project under

the Law with attendat tax exemption benefits as provided in the Law; and.

WHREAS, Entity recognizes that the Annual Servce Charges payable under

the Law with respect to its Project wil not begin to accrue to the City unti the Project is. :
completed; and

WHEREAS, City is in imediate need of additional funds for use durng this

fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, Entity is wiling to prepay certain of the Anual Service Charges

that wil accrue from the Project in exchange for the City's agreement to reimburse such

payments through credits against futue Anual Service Charges that wil become due;

and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and other good and

valuable consideration) Entity and City hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Reliance/Interest

A. Reliance. The Entity acknowledges that the City relies on this payment

and will enter into agreements in anticipation of rec~iving such fuds in a timely maner.

B. Interest. Any late payment of the Prpayment in whole or in par shal bear an

8% rate of interest untii paid. Interest wil be charged commencing on the 20th day

following adoption of the ordinance that authonzed the executon of the tax exemption

financial agreement. Interest wil accrue on the unpaid balance commencing on June 2,

2009.



Section 2. Prepayment/Credits

A. Prepayment. The Entity agrees to make a payment in the amount. of

$1,000,000, representig a Prepayment of a porton of one full years estiated Anual

Service Charge. The Prepayment shall be made on or before June 1,2009, and credited

again futue Anual Servce Charges in the manner described below. .

B. Security. The Entity agrees to post a letter of credit or bond or other securty,

satisfactory to the City's Business Admstrator to secur the tiely payment of th

obligation.

C. Credit. City agrees to give Entity a credit without interest agaist the

Anual Service Charges otherwise due under the Financial Agreement in the following

maner:

(i) For each of the fist four yeårs tht the Entty is obligated under the

Fínancial Agreement to pay Anual Service Chages, the Entity shall be entitled to a credit

agaist such charges in theanuntof$250,OOO in year one; $250,000 in year two; $250,000

in year thee; and $250,000 in year four, with the credit prorated for the first year and last

yea if suc1i years are less than full calendar yeas;

(ii) The Anual Service Charges are to be paid quarterly under the

Fincial Agreement. The credits hereunder are to be taken against the earliest quaerly

payments in each year until the ~ual amount of the credit, or appropriate pro rata portion

for less than a full year, has been recouped in full by the Entity;

(ii) The aggregate amount of 
the credits herewider sha be $1,000,000;

(iv) Notwithtandig, under no circumtances sha the Entity be entitled
to a credit in excess of the amount of the actual aiual service charges (that is, excluding any

credit for land taes) actully paid by the Entity.

D. Additional Credit. Ii the event the Entity is unable to fuy recover its

Prepayment agaíns the Anua Servce Chage for any reason, then the Entity shall be

entitled to a credit agait any conventional taxes assessed on the Iiprovem~nts until the

Prepayment is recouped. At no tie shal any interest accrue on the credit.

E. Coordination of Credit. The Office of Tax Abatement shall noti the

appropriate tang auorities of ths credit arangement so that bils for Anual Service

Charges when issued wil reflect the credt.

Section 3. Payments



All payments due hereunder shall be sent to the Director of 
the Offce of Tax Abatement, with a, .

copy to the Business Administrator.

IN WITNESS WHREOF, the partes have caused this Agreement to be executed the

day and year first above written.

WITNESS:

ATTEST:

;¡iiii~ii~

::HE¡DGçç~LLC

BRI O'REILLY
BUSINESS ADMIISTR TOR



Resolution of,the City of Jersey City, N.J.
Ciiy Clark FUe No.

. Agenda No.

A.pprovd:

TIIlE:

Res. 08-363

iO.A

NAY 282008

JlOLunONAUTH.QRIINGA PREPAYMNT AGREEMENT OF ASERVlCE
CHAGE FROM ATHENA BLDG 110 URAN RENEWAL. L-rC

COUNCI OFFRE AN MOVED ADOPTION
OF TH FOLLOWIG REOLUTION:

WHEREAS, Atena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LL, has offer to make a prepayment
of the Anuar Service Chare in the ~ of $1,000,000, to be reimbured against i1 úi
exemption Anl Set'ice Charge over the ne~ fout fical years; and

WHREAS, it is in the best inrests of the City of Jersey City to accept the prpayment of
the service ohage; and

WHEREAS, in order to alow tho City to anticipate and rely on the fods and properly
accoun for the fuds, the City ofJersey City should approve the prepaymt of the Anual
Ser¡ce Chge and authorize the execution of an agreement.

NOW, TlIFORE.:BE ITRESOL VED by the Municlpal Counoil of the CityofJers~
City that:

i. The Mayor or Business Admstator is hereby autlorizd to exec\le a
Prepayment Agreement with Atha BLDG 110 Urban Renewal Company, LLC, to prepay
its Anual Servce Chage in the amount of$l,OOO,OOO, on or beforo Jwe 1,2009, to be

credited over the ensuin four fisca years; an

2. The Agreement shaU be in substatially the form attched, subject to such
modificaon as the Corporation Counelor Business Administrar deems appropriate ornecessar. .
JMlhe
5/05/08

APPROVED: APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

APPROVED: JI!~
Certifcatlon RequIred 0/

~PROVED $-pONot Reqùlred

RECORD OF COUNCIL VOTE ON F1HA PASA.GE 5/2.8708

COUNClLERON AVE NA N,V. COUNCIlSON AYE NAY N.V. COUNCILPON AYE NAY N,V.

SOlTO V GAUGHAN ./ BREN ;/
SPlN i/ FUOP 7 FLOOD V
LIPSK AS )cN" .-

RICHADSON ,/ VEGPRES, v'
~ Indicaes Vole

Adopted at a meeUng of the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey Cit, N.J.'~)G1~MBrlaml Veg, Jr.. preç14;¡

N.V.-NoIVollng ~)

~~



EXHITD

ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE OF FORMTION
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Sttte of New Jers'ey
Dm1il'R11Jl OF CÓI"riIIINlnl' Al'AIII

101 IlttTlIniiQAfl STr.it
roRii),1l

'riimniii NJ lI¡;i5..i~

,i (IN 1i..cbR7.1Nl~
tiOvv.RNpR

CUi\RLF'1 A. RJÇlf~N
l1t.'T/l1l COM1'.!((-N&1l

D~PAFiT.MIiNT OF COMMtJNITY AFFI.IRS

TO': 6:ate'Tteas.\.r.~r .
R'E: A1HENA,êLD$ i 1Ø,Uf.8ÄhJ .ReNEWAL"U.C

F11å,lt 82S
An U rbaii Renewal Enmy

"

This. is to oimlfy ita\ Ih~ aua:ch.sd CEf\T.IF.CATE' OF FOAKoATJON OF AN URBAIl
R ENi:Al ÊN1 liii been ~aT(linGi;land ,appiqve,et by thii Daplli:meni of .Gommi.lt Affar,rs,
pursuaniió the powér \"9sladlii:lt ~.a9r the ~Lóng Tarr Tax Exemp.llon tBW;" P.t.. 1991.0.431.

Dona .tHls ~/.. day or 5~1t~201 at Trenton, NeW Jersey.

Of:PARTMENT OF CÒ~MUNITY AFFAIRS

BY

,
i
I.

Hm' JrrJn" i. "" irii,i, OI't"'"'IIIIt.~ ,.;."1'1,,"'... Prim"I!,,, fC~"wrll'nll(Ttli'" "tr:I'''lllJlr



.0. .

CER'CA1J OF FORM710N
FILED

~~BZOOi I
: StATE TREASURER

OF

Athena HIDO 110 Urbrm Renewal, .r.C. .
To: D'ertt! oft1Ie Tieaswy

, Stare of New Jersey

TH UNERSIGNErfor tJpur.ose,of fonning a 
Lfmited I;iobl1rr .

Company pursua .to the provisioTI o!NJSll 42:2B~i' et seq., the NeW,Jersey Limited
Liabilit C-ompåny..ci, 'her~1J ,execU1es the/O/lowng Cer;fieae of Formon:

J. Th name tJf ilil! Limited Liabilty tompmu iP

Athéiia lJrJ 110 Urbari RMèall !:C

'2. :re adress o/the initial reglste.red pffoe,r;fthe compa11in t1Je State of New

Jer~ey is

cld Kremer; B.umJ. Myteikn. Loll & Kull, P.A.

',6,75 Morr Aveiue, Sprln.gteld, NewJersey 07081

ant the name 0/ the ititial reglierefI agetf/or .rèrvee of ptóct!s t1t tha
adress is

Arhena BWG 110 Urban,Ren~aIi LLC

3. Thè Ci:tpat fu qne or. more mfmer;r.

4. Duraton:' pelpclUal

5. r1e limitttd.Uabmry cC1mpany htl been or.ganfled to iS~rve apubUcpurposc; it

operatioM ¡hafl be directed toward providing for an mang pos~ble r~ clearancc,
re-pkinnIn-g, i!elopm.m, ¿" redevel~p'ment 0/ bngh;ed iVea or thtr acgulslt!on.
maasem and operation of a pro/t,crtUldsr r/z Compr.eenive Houslng.Ql
RedtnëlopmilJ "Lon8 Ter Tax Exemption Lá" P.L. 1991, c. 431 (NJ.S.A. 40A.:2() ,I, .er seq.) . .

. .



.00. /'

T!tø puiosio.r wiath:!t is fcrneil.rlm ti to Opl!ra. imet P.i.. ,1991., c.1/Jl
(C. ta~~Õ.l ei s~.J and to Liiftf¡t; rm'cØJi~frdjl!cts fer the redtmlopmeni of (J
rernttopme,DtëdprirGi Wft ~eto~l-rm. ør !!fpJer: p.ecessa-i ~eJ. or
~~#'in(enrlar:~ r~1i~Q1t .pl ry~ ~~ldf!i1.~r.l~ 11~ d~t(1ced W'th reiZ1.i!lopmtll of
alÌ orplll1 rJ em (il. nj'dnr,nd.ev1ojm iieÌÍ. or.:ll 't m.nertJnJ-~ /u1!,B proJe.m,
and ,when åfatúe.~-l? jidâ.,d.ter wfrh. ih~.fflclp!,lf-i,lo,~~rel p~. ~~lP,

c:cmSfrt:, ø!~fJ J1ai;or-operi.e 1W~g; $Q'or c1en:Ttousng. 'bUst.s, lnusall,
ccmi1;aJ¡ adriistravø.. c-ommZlrt¡, /ii1i. reareaimal. f!oni or we"'(U 'frøJIlc:',
pr ~ ccmibl~O"~;,rIWt1'Qr. PJ",~(lJi1iese.typei o¡.tm¡1"venTll in a f~n81e prtJeat~ im~

. ~uc,.ccmditcns, a.lo ÍlIl. OWitr.Ip, -mei and CDIJrtDl tß''(g:ied Pllr.ua 10 'P:L.
1991, c.ìf3i'rC.40;4.~Zo- :eNèq.J

Sf) 7.!l8'0$ 1'h en't iš, .otJiigtied .iuider jidaf' agreeen With a ,ihpaUt inet
pflr~ to l.i. iPfl, 'c.if.3t'rC, 40.::2,o.i ~t. Jfg;). 11 s/il1 engage in,no 'b~ 'òl1ië"" thM

(ne Ò'ilJijPI oJ1èrattm øn i7qli ofthe.p'l.oJtèt

~ pniw .Ji,:htm. rJrGcùfltetUó S8n, .a'pJlllcp"rpos~,. ltt Òpi:rarms ~fil /)fl,dJred~d
,tow (1 the.:rtdtth?~ri-ol iëdeelp'iMt: å~lil the!aclUtti rd ihl: røfOøn -oj
7'Jlf tm¡RCe(l~no'~e dlrlieábY tidtlopm~iii or tM c.imduci YJj-fi ll mo~
rric(J~ lJt)tiTl:Z;P1jj;~w f¡ 'i1tJ tuc¡fsltàn. maginni"åN operatòn.:oJa. pJrJetJ,
rJ!eY(!/r¡f'rl!lnClo.ß':lwusnnprqeCl, or lo án motra! ~ ,~olJsfiigpfljei: ia..
P,L. ;i~Jjii "C~ i/$lia4.0J._.~(11"ei ~~..; åíd (9) It SMll l1 subject ip regU1erïÚJ t/æ' .
rn~lf;Y1J~wntdi frsproJn.Ct is iUÍlf1ted, aniU" a-lfiltJl)ß Oi"i';ólllbL.ìiari ii '!p1tprWe;
on projiti.ør iJ.Jr ro ,1Qng.. iu it Temafns the DWet 01 t1prøJeet SubjECt tn PoL. 1991,

C.4tUrCi40112~1 a $ri.)

. Th,tn .thtil ¡irft ill'Ultarily:/T ~re tha 10% .ofrhe iwer.s'liJ/"'i/J1 priWcr

t?r dJ p(lriDiJ:1¡æfl!of~er.~:Ú1 iJ ~tk P.L. 199.1.., c.191rC.4fA.t2n.i et $Rr¡.), utNi
ha.,:tr#,r.Qlrfbot1::~l11f'lnf t!'11Wea,t:frn ali r.eMctt?~ PI p'.L. ,1~9J.

c,,431(C..4fA::2o-J d.rIt1¡.).fJ the:mierreiiredby P.L. 199i, c.431'(CMOil::lfJl a.segi)
an; if 1~;proJt!l.ilrclllet,hòUS~tii~ì ~ -obtlllUd ih~ COlfen tJtl~ GDmmslDlier of

Gomm.un1t¡ 4Jß.r t() .sudh IranSn; wi rJ.t:lMrlon o.lrtr to anot1ur llan 'reMW

enl!y. (J,tl.Pr.V~i1:kY tlt:'mrc1priity in whidt rheproe,a ÎS-qltuaeå,., wnich,ol1rur
rm~ err¡ ~hål lilS~ art C9~ abllgaton. ii rhe:irmtrr .t 'tu:~
~ ,ilgfee¡iJ:Jvfth 11t, ~djd1fiy. 11ft. en :hU jfÌe. rn wTtJl.'rhe muclal
8.~~~,g btk a dI~öl~Jn ojìh J*rifotu JuMÎig an otrs1tiP ilWst 1h iJ Pro/ertl' and c.
thi orqJ.oltk, ~N1u .ileter öf~~/i N.()1i he ~1iIJ priimlil an tr,. oJlhfi
~u.l#p iJfe&t rn :rlw 'fan 'r4~1~ônlY ItJaifprofldei tho th trr. If grarer:th

10 percttli, 'S dJlë1s"ld ~o 'tM 1të1pal..gOllérta body in 'te tJ ilè¡¡~re Jt~m'e 01'
in C;Q170~dence fl!nl 10 1M trfc;alily 1n aice ofùie am di¡clture statemrl!rr to åbe '

I
"

,
"

:



... .0

!'e emt) i3 "iubJl!(;( ot rheproviSlons oj Secton 18 of P.L.19!Jl, c.431 t
(C.4O..2D-l'J) .re.peetng rh-ep()wes,'oftJ'B municipality tö allev/at8finanr;ial
d(fcuT/es oJthe,ur.bat renew1 entity (Jl'l()flelfonn aciions on beháffofihe enifr¡
upo.n ii detennnaon offlnanc.lal emsl'genuy.

. Any housinq units cn~trntE!d' or acquJred Ú) tha e11lty shqll b-e m~ged .

'siiftçt To 1M ;rüpensitm of, aM niles adpted by. the eomrssiom:r of Ccmiiy
, tlJi~ïrir.

The imrJlghed represmts i~at tli:.Jling compiles with Staie la as deaie.d
In N1Sti 4.2 and .t/i ~he is 'auJio.rlèt to sign thts f0!' on :belJaIf"Ofthe' Limited

Liaòflry Comptmy.

1Jated: o/l C!7

.¡

".
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ß-btte .af Ntu aJer.slJ
DIïPARTMEi OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

JON S. CORZINE
Govenior

JOSEPH V. DORIA. JR.
Commissioner

P.S.P,ARtN OF COMMUNIT.Y"AFFAIRS

TO: State'leias.lirer
RE; l1 0 FIRST STREET URBAN REEWAL ASSÓCIA TESt LLC

(formerly Atheiifl Bldg 110 Urban Renewal, LLC)
File # 8.25

An Ul'ban Renewal Entity

This is to ëërüI) thåt .the åttaehed CERTIFICATE OF AMMENT hns b~eii
examined and:,appray,ed. by tJ,1e Dep'ärtl1~nt of Coiimün'ify Affail's, pursuant .to. the power vested
hi.it wider the:11Long renii TilX' Ex.ernption Law t"'.P :L. 1991 t. c. 4.3.1.

Done this ?~ay of :iW/1tLk:Fe. 2ÒOS .l:t Trenton, New Jersey.

DEP ARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIS

BY ~,ØrØ~
Cy, ia A~ WHIt, .Dir~tor'
Division of Codes and Standards

New Jetsey is Aii Equal Ø,pporMlfl)i Employu;i 41 Pr/ii;eå 0.1 Ruçyfllod Paper (liid Recyclqble.



L-I02 NJSA 42 (2/94)

New Jersey Division of Revenue

Certificate of Amendment

Limited Liabilty Company

This form may be used to amend a Certificate ofFonnation ofa Limited Liabilty Company on fie with
the Department of the Treasury. Applicants must insure strict compliance with NJSA 42, the New Jersey
Limited Liabilit Act, and insure that all applicable filing requirements are met.

1. Name of Limited Liabilty Company: Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC

2. Identifcation Number: 0600310063

3. New LLC Name (if applicable): 110 Fjrst Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC

4. Effective Date: As of fing.

5. The Certificate of Formation is amended as follows (provide attachments if needed):

Name Change only.

r-

The undersigned represent(s) that this filing complies with State law as detailed in NJSA 42 and
that they are authorized to sign this form on behalf of 

the Limited Liabilty Company.

s;gml=:êß-
Name: Loyd Goid rncin) AU+~~lzed S~ha.--r~

Date: O~/~SJD~

503022

NJ Division of Revenue, PO Box 308, Trenton. NJ 08646~K~
PATRiA L MQEl

Noau -pub, 'State (If NØV .ir4v
My CommlPlo Exp\fa Ja 1 t 12010
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LETTER NOTICE
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WATERS, MCPHERSON, McNEILL
A PROFESSIONAl CORPORATION

DrRE;CT DIAL

201-330-7465

City Council
City of Jersey City
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, NJ 07302

ATTORNE:YS AT LAW
- SECAUCUS' TRENTON' NEW YORK

MEADOWLÀNDS OFFICE
,300 LIGHTING WAY

P.O. Box 1560
SECAUCUS, NEW JERSEY 07096

201'863-4400
www.lawwmm.com

June 15, 2009

E-MAIl.

Jragnotjlawwmm,oom
TEI.ECOPIER

20(-663-2866

.JOSEPH G. RAGNO

Attention: Robert Byrne, Clerk

Re: Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC
110 First Street

Jersey City, New Jersey
Our- File No.: 10640w1 '

Dear Mr. Byrrle:

Pursuant to NJSA 40A: 20~5e, on behalf of 110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates,
LLC, the owner of the propert known as 110 First St~eet, Jersey City, NJ, we hereby notify the
City Council as follows:

1. Effective September 18, 2008, the name of the urban renewal entity formerly known as

Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC (the "URE") was changed to 110 First Street Urban
Renewal Associates, LLC. See fied Certificate of Name Change attached as Exhibit A.

2. Effective September 4, 2008, the name of the sole member øf the URE, Athena BLDG
110, LLC, a Delaware limited liabilty company was changed to 110 First Street Associates,
LLC. See filed Certificate of Name Change attached as Exhibit B.

3, Effective July 3D, 2008, the 50% membership interest of Athena Jersey City 110 First
Street, LL.C. in 110 First Street Associates, LLC was transferred to New Gold Equities Corp.
(15%) and BLDG 110 Associates, LLC (85%). See Assignment and Assumption of Membership
Interest attached as Exhibit C.

Very truly yours,

WATERS, MCPHERSON, MCNEILL, P.C.

cc: Brian O'Reily, Business Administrator

Joanne Mona!)an, Assistant Corporation Counsel
Donald Olenick, Esq.

607423
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New Jersey Dlvlslon of Revenue

Certficate of Amendment

SEP 1 8 2008

STATE TR~ASURER

0((1 3/ öO(ò :3

L- i 02 NJSA 42 (2/94)

Limited Liabilty Company

This form may be used to amend Ii Certificate of 
Formation ofa Limited Liabilty Company on fie with

the Departent of the Treasury. Applicants must Insure strict compliance wil, NJSA 42, the New Jersey
Limited Liabilty Act, and Insure that all applicable fiIlng requirements are met.

1. ' Name of Limited Liabilty Company: Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC

2. (dentification Number: 0600310063

3. New LLCName (ifappllcable): 110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC

4. Effective Date: As of fiUng.

S. The Certlfcate of Fonnation is amended as follows (provide attchments if neeed):

Name Change only-

The undersigned represent(s) that this filing complies with State law as detailed in NJSA 42 and
that they are authorized to sign this form on behalf of the Liinited Liabilty Company.

Signatre: ap~ .
Name: L \ Oid Goid maD i Au+ho'r'1 zed S~3'tCL~r-~'

Date: O~/;JSJO~ , .

, ,

N,) 'D'¡vision of Revenue. PO Box 308, Trenton. N~ 08646

503022 ~¡l~Dí
PATRICIA i. ~RSEL

Notary PubRc, Stae of New Jer&y .
My eommlsn Expifoa Jim. 11, 2010.



~Nte uf NfW 3Jet"lj
DEPAltlMEN Of COMMUNllY AFAIRS

JON S. CORZINE
Go\iemor

II

DEPARTMENT OF COMM1TY AFFAIRS

JOSEPH V. DOIlIA. JR.
COlnmf,fSioiim'

TO: State Trea$urer
RE: 110 FIRST STREET URBAN RENEW AL ASSOCIATES, LLC

(foiuierly Atheiia Bldg i 10 Urban Renewal, LLC)
. File # 825

An Urban Renewal Entity

This is to certfy that the attached CERTIFCATE OF AMENDMENT has been
examined and approved by the Deparment ofCmnunit)' Affairs, pui'suant to the powelvested
in it under the "Long Tem'i Tax Exemption Law," P .L. 199 i, c. 431. .

4"7
Done this / day of 56:?rfíJ?lt. 2008 at Trentoii) New Jersey.

DEP ARTMENT OF COMMITY AFFAIS

BY ~/!eØ~
C / ria A. Wile. Director

Division of Codes and Standards

. Nell Jersa,v Is Aii Eqiial Opponiirity Employer . Printed on Recycled PapIr and ReC)Jcfable



EXHIBIT B



ÐeCaware PA-GE 1

'fJ :First State

I, HARIET SMTH WINDSOR, SECRTARY OJl STATE OF THE STATE OF

DELAWÃ1 i PO lIREBY CERIJIFY THE ATTACHED is A :rlWE AND CO,RCT

COpy OF THE CERPIFICATE OF JmNDMENT OJ! "ATHENA :BLDG 110 LLC" ,

CRANGING ITS NAM FROM "ATHENA BLDG 110 LLçir TO "110 FIRST

STREET ASSOCIATES LLC", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE FOURTH DAY

OF SEPTEMER., A.D. 2008, AT 3:57 O'CLOCK P.M.

~~~91~
4340078 8100

080927027

Harrl6t Smith Windsor. secretary of State

AUTHENTICATION: 6832748

DATE: 09-05-08



st:te ot: DelawareSeta of stat;
Di viion or Corprations

.Dvered 04:2J. 2M 09/04/2008
FI 03:57 PM 09/04/2008

SRV 080927027 - 4340078 FI

STATE OF DELAWAR
CERTIFICATE OF AMNDMENT

1. Name of LimUeù Liabilit Company: Athena BLDG 110 LLC

2. The Certficat6 ofFonnation ofthe Iìmll.ed liabilty company is hereby amended

as follows:

The name of tlie ant:l ty above shall be changed to:

1iO Firat S~eet Associates LLC

IN WIESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have ex.ecuted tils Ccrtlficate on
rllthe ,;1 _ day of d"'b6! . A,D. i. npff..

By' ~:=;'J

Name:
Print or Type
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". .
ORIGltlAl

: . : ". ..::': :.:1:: 0;.:.: "0'0 :";0;0':' ,"::0::",: ";°::.:-°: °0..: 1.:-:" _; ..:....0.' ...:.. _: ........ "," ... . . ""."0....: .: ': .. :-. :. ~.:. :::0:";: ",0 °0°:.:.....°::-; -: ".: ;:.:....:.::.~.;.::...::"O

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF MEMBERSHlP INTEREST

Assigmnent and Assumption of Membership Interest dared as of
J,A ..û1f, :iOO€ . ("Assignment") by and between Athena Jersey City I 10 First Street LLC, it
Del?ware 1'imited liability company with an address clo The AlIiena Group, LL.C., 712 Fifth
Aveuuei gil Floor. New York, NY 10019 ('!Assignor"), and New Gold Equities Corp.. ii New
Jersey Corporation. aiid BLDG i 10 Associates, LtC. a New Jei:sey limited liabilty companr.

. each wlth an address c/o BLDG Management Co, !nc, 417 fifth Aveiiue, 41h Floor, New York.
NY 10016 (collectivelyi "Assignee").

.Y lIrlgâ~l;I Hi

WHEREAS, Assignor and Assignee are ¡he sole Members in Athena BLDG 110
LLC, (the "Company"), a New Jersey 'roted liability company which \vas formed purSullllt 10
that Certificate of formation daied Dtf l) fi led with the Secretary of Siate of the State
of New Jersey and that Operating Agreem.ent dated as of September 24-, 2007 (the "Operating.
Agreement").

therein;
WHEREAS, the Assignor liolds Fifty Percent (50%) of the Pcrcentage Interesrs

,

WHEREAS, Assigl10r desires to nssign, li'ansfer a.ne! convey 10 Assignei; all of ifS
right, title and interest in and to its Member Interest in the Company pursuant 10 thai Member
Interest Translèr Agrecmein of even dale herewith (the "Transfer Agreement") between

As~ignor nnd Assignee;

\\,HEREAS1 Assignee wishes to accept the ilSsigl1menf of the Member Inlerest.
upon the terms and subject to the conditons set forth heTein~

. WHEREAS. capitali7.ed lenus used herein shall have the me.iings ascribed to
them respectively by the Transfer Agreement, wi.css othen..ístl defined herein.

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing premises and the
agreements hereinaf\ei' set forth, aiid for other good and valuable consìde:raliöl1, the receipt and
suffciency of which are hereby aclmowlcdged, Assignor and Assignee. ílitcndíilß 10 be legally
bound., hereby agree as follows=

1. Assignment and Assumption. Assignor hereby assigns mid transfers to
Assignee all of the right, title and interesl of Assigiior iii and to the Member Interest .and .
Assignee hereby assumes all of the obligations iirisillg on account of the Yl ember Interl,st subject
to and except as otherwise set fl?i1h in the Transfer Agreement. Assignor's .i.-1ember Interest
shall deemed to be assigned' in the following proportions: Fifteen (i 5%) perceiit, of its Member
rote-reSf shall be ,äeeined assigned to New Gold Equities Corp. and Eiglity~Five (85%) of its
Member Interest shall be deemed assigned to BLDG 1 i 0 Associates LLC.



...... ~ . .. .. ........... ~"~"~"'.""""" .... .... .......,....................... .........................,¡........................................................... ......................u. ............... .... ...... ........ .........

..... .. . ........ .........1........ ..... ........ .... .......... ........,................. ..... .... ........ .... ...,.. ................ . .. . ".. . .... .

2. Furher Assurances. Assignor hereby covenants and agrees to execute and

deliver all such fuher instruments and other documents, ai~d to take all mich further actions, as
shall be necessary to accomplish or confimi the tranctions covered hereby.

3. Binding Effect. This Assignment shall be bindil'ig upon, ioure to the

benefit of, and be enforceable- by, the paries hereto ånd theìr respectiye personal representaives.
heirs, successors and perniited assigns; J2ovided. that this Assignment cannot be amended
without the ex.press written consent of each PHrty hereto.

4, Governing L."iw. This A.signment shall be governed by, and coilstnied

and interpreted in accordance with. the laws and decisions of the State of Nc\-v York and LUL.~

been executed and delivered in the State of New York

5. Counl.rpais. This As~ignmcnt may be i:xeciited in one or morc

couilterpal'ts. aiiy oiie of which shall be deemed an origimil. and all of 
which shilIJ be deemed to

constítute one and the same agreement.

iSlGNATURES C:0NTJNUE ON FOLLO'¥ING PAGEJ
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ix WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor and Assignee have executed and delivered. or
ca.used th~ cx~cutjon and delivery of, tbis Assignment as aflhe daie first written above.

A.SSrGNOR

Athena. J el'sey City 110 Fj¡'st Street LLC

By: AREP Master Partnership II Ll', irs sole
member

. B)': ~)l. REALTY II, i. ,,__,General
Punner

By:_

~, ASsrGNEE

NEW GOLD ÉQUITIES CORP,

ß)':

BLDG J 10 ASSOCIATES. LLC
By: ~LDG Associates, Inc.

By: ~~
Name: Lloyd Goldman
Title: President

: , .'

,,\,



.'

-

::'.'.":...: - ':'IN':WimEg'Š:''~;:'ÄSsigiïöt:'im-tfMSig~ëë:'lÏ~v~.~i~~~ii~~m;iiéd."b~":"'::: ,',
'caused the execution and delivery ot this Assignment as õfthe date first written above.

ASSIGNOR

Athena Jersey City 110 First Street LLC

By: ARP Master Parer,ship II LP, its sole
memberBy: ,General
Parer

By:.
Name:
Title:

ASSIGNE

B)r
LI N)CL¡ 'Pldeo

BLDG 110 ASSOCIATES. LLC
By: BLDG Associates, Inc.

~~ ----
Title: President

..



EXHITG

.-- -----OWNEî.SH:-DIS-CLOSURIfS'íATß~T-----.- - -- n__ - - - - - - ---- . -- -.--

110 FIST STEET URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LLC

N.AME ADDRESS

c/o BLDG Management Co.~ Inc.
417 Fifth Avenue, 4th Floor
New York. New York 10016

PERCENTAGE OWNE

110 First Steet Associates, LLC 100%

BLDG 110 Associates, LLC
New Gold Equities Corporation

110 FIRST STREET ASSOCIATES, LLC

c/o BLDG Management Co., Inc.
417 Fift Avenue, 4tb Floor

New York, New York 10016
100%

I cert that the above represents the names and adcliesses of all entities who own a 10%
or greater interest in 110 Ph'st Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC.

I further certify tht ti offcer or employee of the City of Jersey City has any interest,

direct aI' indireot, in the above entI.

I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if any of the
foregoing stateents made by me are wilfully fale, I am subject to punhment.

110 FIRST STREE'l' U:iAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES, LLC

By: ~
t (ro yd 6o(d~Çf ~
A dku:.'c.u:\ 6!ótl't +¡

Name:

Its:



EXHITH

ESTIMTED CONSTRUCTION SCHDULE

Construction wil commence 180 days following. approval of the Amended Financial

Agreement and amendment of the sca.



EXlmITI

GOOD FAITH LEASE ESTIMATES

The following is a good faith estimate of the initial rents to be achieved from the Project.

A. RESIDENTIAL

442 Market Rate Units (370,808 sfnet
rentable ê $39/sf) $14,461,512/anum

10 ADUs (8,000 sf net rentable ê 15/sf) $ 120,000/anum

B. RETAIL

16,597 square feet ê $30/square foot $497,910/anum

C. PARKING

343 Spaces ê $ 150/month $617,400/anum



EXHITJ

ESTIMATED ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE SCHEDULE

Based on good faith estimates of the rents to be achieved, the Anual Service Charge
over the term of the exemption is estimated as follows:

YEAR 1 STABILIZED

A.
Aparment Rent

eMarket* (442 units)
eADU (10 unts)

$1,373,843
$12,000

B. Affordable Dwelling Units *(10 units) 11,400

B. Retail (16,597 square feet) $47,301

C. Parking (343 spaces) $58,653

Grand Total $1.491.198

698248

*
at 95% occupancy



EXHITK

ESTIMTE FINANCIAL PLAN
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Rev. 8-23-05

Long Term Tax Exemption
N,J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.
(Market Rate Residential Rental)

Re: 110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC

Approximately,73 Acres

Block 11603, Lot 42
Powerhouse Ars Redevelopment Plan Area

PREAMBLE

THIS AMENDED FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, (Amended Agreement) is made the

day of_, 2012 by and between 110 FIRST STREET URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCIATES,

LLC, an urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the

Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S,A. 40A:20-1 et

seq., having its principal office at c/o BLDG Management Co., Inc" 417 Fifth Avenue, 4th Floor,

New York, NY 10016 (Entity), and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of

the State of New Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey

07302 (City).

RECITALS

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner of certain property designated as

Block 11603, Lot 42 (formerly Block 109, Lot WA), more commonly known by the street

address of 1 10 First Street, and more paricularly described by the metes and bounds description

set forth as Exhibit_ to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the Powerhouse Ars

Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to constrct a 35 story building, containing approximately

452 residential rental units consisting of 442 market rate unts and 10 Affordable Dwellng Units

(ADUs), approximately 16,597 square feet of retail space and 343 parking spaces for the use of

the residents and retail customers only, (Project); and

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2008, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long

term tax exemption for the Project; and

1



WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1. the curent real estate tax generates revenue of only $87,674, whereas, the

Anual Service charge as estimated, and wil generate revenue to the City
of approximately $1,585,212;

2. the Entity has agreed, as part of its stipulation of settlement and consent

order in the matter entitled New Gold Equities Corp., and BLDG
Management Co., Inc., vs. City of Jersey City, et al, Docket No. 05-cv-
03561-DRD-SDW (Consent Order), to set aside 25 units on-site as
Affordable Dwelling Units and pay $2,500,000 to subsidize 25 units of
Choice Program off-site at the Sumit Heights Project, which obligations
were intended to subsume any other Affordable Housing obligations
imposed by the City of Jersey City, specifically those set forth in Section
304-28 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;

3. in view of the uniqueness of the Project and the complex litigation and

negotiated settlement, the City hereby agrees to waive payment of the
$665,396 to the City's Affordable Housing Trust Fund as required by
Section 304-28 of the Jersey City Municipal Code;

4. it is expected that the Project wil create approximately 300 jobs during

construction and 15 new permanent jobs;

5. the Project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of

existing local business and to the creation of new business, which cater to
the new residents;

6. the Project wil further the redevelopment objectives of the Powerhouse

Ars Redevelopment Plan;

7, the City's impact analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk,

indicates that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and

B. Assessment of the Importance of the Tax Exemption in obtaining development of

the Project and infuencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will

make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to
finance the Project; and

2, the relative stability and predictability of the service charges wil allow the

owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of
maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which wil insure

2



, .

the likelihood of the success of the Project and insure that it wil have a
positive impact on the surounding area; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance 08-074 on May 28, 2008, the Municipal

Council approved the above findings and the tax exemption Application and authorized the

execution of this Agreement.

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the financial crisis the construction of the Project was

never commenced; and

WHEREAS, in order to make the Project viable and facilitate construction, certain

Amendments to the terms of the Financial Agreement are deemed to be reasonable and necessary

and;

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance _ on the Municipal Council

approved the above finding and authorized the execution of this Amended Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and

for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption

Law, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor,

02-003, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinances 08- 074, which authorized the execution of this

Agreement and 12- , which authorized the execution of this Amended Agreement.

It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and

representations contained in the Application and the Application to Amend Financial Agreement,

attached hereto as Exhibit _, in granting this tax exemption.

Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in

ths Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanngs:

3



1. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arived at by applying the Allowable Profit

Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

11. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per anum arrived

at by adding 1.25% to the anual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial

permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a

governental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per

anum basis, shall be considered as interest for this purose. If there is no permanent mortgage

financing, or if the financing is internal or undertaken by a related pary, the Allowable Profit

Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per

anum to the interest rate per anum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate

on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.

11. Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue collected from the Project of whatever kind

or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third paries,

including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, laundry, health club user

fees or other services (such as lease premiums for views, fireplaces, etc.), No deductions wil be

allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including, but not limited to gas, electric, water and

sewer, other utilities, garbage removal and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord,

tenant or a third par, except for customar operating expenses of commercial tenants such as

utilities, insurance and taxes (including payments in lieu of taxes) which shall be deducted from

Gross Revenue based on the actual amount of such costs incurred.

iv. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City for

municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the

Improvements, pursuant to N.J,S.A. 40A:20-12.

v. Auditor's Report - A complete financial statement outlining the financial status of

the Project (for a period of time as indicated by context), which shall also include a certification

of Total Project Cost and clear computation of Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor's Report

shall have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and shall

contain at a minimum the following: a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of

retained earngs or changes in stockholders' equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of

accounting policies, notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory

material results of operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law, The Auditor's

4



Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public

accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

VI. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in par, pursuant to NJ.S.A.

52:27D-133.

vii. Debt Service - The amount required to make anual payments of principal and

interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other

financing including returs on institutional equity financing and market rate related pary debt

for the project for a period equal to the term of this agreement.

V11. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure ofthe Entity to perform any obligation

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any

applicable grace or cure periods.

ix. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean 110 First Street Urban

Renewal Associates, LLC (the successor to Athena BLDG 110 Urban Renewal, LLC pursuant to

Certificate of Name Change filed September 9, 2008, Exhibit E) which Entity is formed and

qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5. It shall also include any subsequent purchasers or

successors in interest of the Project, provided they are formed and operate under the Law.

x. Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixtue permanently affixed

to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

XL. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under NJ.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-

129 ~t seq.

xu. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the

Project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not

exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

XUL Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarerly due dates, including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax

. Collector.

xiv. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and

supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003, relating to long

term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance 02-075, and

Ordinances 08-074 and 12- which authorized the execution of the Agreement and the

5



Amended Agreement; and Ordinance 07-123, as may be amended or supplemented from time to

time, which requires the execution of a Project Labor Agreement, and all other relevant Federal,

State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

xv. Lease Up Period - Shall begin on the date of the issuance of the first Certificate of

Occupancy (whether permanent or temporary) for any floor or any portion thereof. During the

Lease Up Period, the Entity shall pay the sum equal to the estimated Anual Service Charge

divided by the number of Units divided by 12 for each Unit for each month after that Unit has

received a Certificate of Occupancy, whether the floor is actually occupied or generated revenue.

The payment shall begin on the 1 st day of the month following the issuance of the Certificate of

Occupancy for that Floor. The Lease Up Period for the Project expires twelve (12) months after

the issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy for any floor.

XVi. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall

be the greater of:

(a) the amount of the total taxes levied against all real propert in the area covered

by the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, or in the case of

tax exempt property, the projected tax levy based upon the assessed value for the year in which

the application is filed, which amount the paries agree is $ 110,726.40; or

(b) the sum of $ 1 ,200,000 per year, which sum wil be prorated only in the years

in which Substantial Completion occurs and this Agreement terminates.

The Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be paid in each year in which the

Anual Service Charge, calculated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be

less than the Minimum Anual Service Charge.

xviI. Net Profit - The Gross Revenues of the Entity less all operating and non-operating

expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, but:

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Anual Service charges paid pursuant to

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-

15 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an anual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the straight line

method-equal anual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs determined in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable
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anual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the

computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees, brokerage commissions,

insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional

service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office supplies and payments into

repair or maintenance reserve accounts; ( e) all payments of rent including but not limited to

ground rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on

debt, except interest which is par of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or

officers, parners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xviii. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the

singular, as well as the plural, as context requires,

xix. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in par, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of the

Project.

xx, Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms of this

Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

XXi. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth

in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included in Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred

by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are

associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or

contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinar costs incured

including the cost of demolishing structues, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title. The Entity agrees that final

Total Project Cost shall not be less than its estimated Total Project Cost.
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ARTICLE II - APPROV AL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be

constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and

the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known

on the Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 11603, Lot 42 (formerly Block 109,

Lot W A), more commonly known by the street address of 110 First Street, and described by

metes and bounds in Exhibit attached hereto,

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as

Exhibit _' Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law;

has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs;

and has been fied with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson

County Clerk, all in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5,

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it wil construct a 35 story building, containing approximately 452

residential rental units 442 of which will be market rate unts and 10 of which wil be ADUs,

approximately 16,597 square feet of retail space and 343 parking spaces for the use of the

residents and retail customers only, all of which is specifically described in the Application

attached hereto as Exhibit

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the

Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit_,

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the property upon which the Project is to be

constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements wil be managed

and controlled as follows:

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Land upon which the project is to be

constrcted and wil manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges that the Entity may

enter into a management agreement for the Project and wil pay a management fee in accordance
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with HUD regulations as provided in the Entity's agreement with BUD, which fee was disclosed

in its tax exemption application. The City acknowledges that the Entity may enter into futue

management agreements so long as such agreements are not used to reduce the City's economic

benefits under this Agreement and the management fees to be paid are comparable to those

disclosed in the application.

Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhbit _' The Plan sets forth estimated Total Project Cost,

the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of fuds, the interest rates to be paid

on construction financing, the source and amount òf paid-in capital, and the terms of any

mortgage amortization,

Section 2.7 Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schedules and

lease terms are set forth in Exhibit

ARTICLE III - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the paries hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of fourteen

(14) years from the date of the adoption of Ordinance 12- on , 2012, which approved this
Amended Agreement or ten (10) years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project.

The tax exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall

continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and

operating under the Law.

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following payments to

the City:

(i) City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Anual

Service Charge or an Anual Service Charge for the first ten (10) years equal to 10% of the

Anual Gross Revenue for the 452 rental units, parking and retail space. The Anual Service
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Charge shall be biled initially based upon the Entity's estimates of Annual Gross Revenue

which shall not be less than the its estimate of Gross Revenue as set forth in its Financial Plan,

attached hereto as Exhibit Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted in

accordance with this Agreement.

The Minimum Anual Service Charge or The Anual Service Charge as the

case may be shall be due on the first day of the month following the Substantial Completion of

the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum Anual Service Charge or

the Anual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in

the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, upon Substantial Completion,

the Minimum Anual Service Charge shall be prorated in accordance with Section 1 ,2(xvi)(b)

and the Lease Up Period.

(ii) County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Anual Service Charge

upon receipt of that charge, for remittance to the County by the City.

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments

The Anual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax

exemption in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

1. Stage One: From the i st day of the month following Substantial Completion until

the last day ofthe 6th year, the Anual Service Charge shall be 10% of Annual Gross Revenue;

11. Stage Two: Beginning on the i st day of the ih year following Substantial

Completion, an amount equal to the greater of the Anual Service Charge or 20% of the amount

of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements;

11. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 8th year following the Substantial

Completion, an amount equal to the greater of the Anual Service Charge or 40% of the amount

of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements;

iv. Stage Four: Beginnng on the 1st day of the 9th year following Substantial

Completion, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge or 60% of the amount

of the taes otherwise due on the value of the land and Improvements.

v. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1 st day of the 10tli year following Substantial

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the
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Anual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the value of the land

and Improvements.

Section 4.3 Credits

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax

Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the

pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual

Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount,

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarerly installments

against the Anual Service Charge. In any quarer that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax

Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land

Tax Payment credits against the Anual Service Charge for that quarer. No credit wil be

applied against the Anual Service Charge for parial payments of Land Taxes. In addition, the

City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, NJ,S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default

and terminate this Agreement. .

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Anual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear

the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid.

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an anual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the

Anual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two

(2%) percent of each prior year's Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on

or before December 31st of each year, and collected in the same maner as the Anual Service

Charge. In the event that the Entity fails to timely pay the Administrative Fee, the amount

unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on

the land until paid.
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Section 4.6 Affordable Housing Contribution and Set-Aside

The Entity, pursuant to the Financial Agreement and the Amended Settlement Consent

Order, has paid $2,500,000 to subsidize 25 unts of Choice Program off-site at the Sumit

Heights Project. In addition, the Entity shall pay an additional $750,000 into the Affordable

Housing Trust Fund in the maner proscribed in Section 304-28 of the Jersey City Municipal

Code. The Entity has also agreed to set aside 10 ADUs on-site as required to the Second

Amendment to the Settlement Consent Order. The Entity acknowledges that the performance of

the Affordable Housing obligations as set forth above is a material inducement to the City to

enter into this Amended Agreement and a material breach of the obligation shall be considered a

material breach of this Amended Agreement. In consideration of the Entity's contributions as set

forth above, and consistent with the terms of the Second Amendment to the Settlement Consent

Order, it shall be relieved of the obligation to set-aside Affordable Dwelling Units ("ADDs")

on- site beyond the 10 units provided.

Section 4.7 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum

Anual Service Charges, Anual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto, Administrative

Fees, compliance with the Affordable Housing obligations imposed by the Amended Settement

Consent Order, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other

economic related opportunties, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit _' In addition, the Entity

shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Ordinance 07-123 as it exists or as it

may be amended from time to time.
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ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely maner so as to complete construction in accordance with

the proposed constrction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit _' The failure to secure the

Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the property to full taxation for the period between the

date of Substantial Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 Filng of Certificate of Occupancy

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax

Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the

preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,

including, if appropriate retroactive biling with interest for any charges determined to be due, in

the absence of such fiing by the Entity.

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established

and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. An Auditor's Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar

year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the

Entity shall submit to the Mayor and Muncipal Council and the NJ Division of Local

Governent Services in the Deparent of Community Affairs, its Auditor's Report for the

preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not be limited to:

condominium unit purchase price, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgagees) associated

with the purchase or construction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial

affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this

Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during

the previous year.
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B. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and

each and every year thereafer while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal

officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership

interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional

information as the City may request from time to time.

Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City and the NJ Division of Local Governent Services in

the Deparment of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made

during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated

by the Entity.

All costs incured by the City to conduct the audit, including reasonable attorneys' fees if

appropriate, shall be biled to the Entity and paid to the City as par of the Entity's Anual

Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a delinquent

service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves

Durg the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofNJ,S.A. 40A:20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,

and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of

the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such par of the excess

Net Profits as is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in N.J.S.A.

40A:20-15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no fuher credits thereto

shall be permitted afer the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of

the preceding year's Gross Revenue. Pursuant to N,J.S.A. 40A:20-14(b) there is expressly

excluded from the calculation of Gross Revenue and Net Profit in the determination of Excess
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Profit, any gain realized by the Entity on the sale of any condominium unit, whether or not

taxable under federal or state law.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any fiscal year, shall exceed the Allowable

Net Profits for such period, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the

end of such fiscal year, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional service

charge; provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to

aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the entity's excess net profits shall include

those project costs directly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other

costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this agreement even

though those costs may have been deducted from the project costs for puroses of calculating the

annual service charge.

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or
Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal

year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the

amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the excess Net Profit,

if any.

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Approval

Subject to the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:20-5(e), any sale or transfer of the Project, shall

be void uness approved in advance by Ordinance of the Muncipal CounciL. It is understood and

agreed that the City, on written application by the Entity, wil not unreasonably withhold its

consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this Agreement provided 1) the new Entity

does not own any other Project subject to long term tax exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the

new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of

this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under this Agreement is fully assumed by

the new Entity, 5) the Entity shall pay the City a transfer fee equal to 2% of the then curent

Anual Service Charge as required by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-10d.
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Section 9.2 Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in

ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new

tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to

the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate

action on the requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refudable,

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not

only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq., as curently amended and

supplemented, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with

the Law shall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other

remedies, have the right to terminate the tax exemption.

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-

005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status,

The Entity's failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a

Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to

terminate the tax exemption,

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or

failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable

notice, cure or grace period.

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the

Default (Default Notice). The Default Notice shall set forth with paricularity the basis of the

alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure
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any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if, in

the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default canot be cured within sixty (60) days using

reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the

right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section i 2.1,

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material

Conditions in Section 4.7, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as

provided in Aricle XII herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or may declare a

Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising out of the Entity's failure to pay Land

Taxes, the Minimum Anual Service Charge, Administrative Fees, or the Anual Service

Charges or its failure to comply with the Affordable Housing obligations imposed by the

Consent Order shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided in Article XI

herein, but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided

in Aricle XII. All of the remedies provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and

remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be cumulative and concurent. No termination of

any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against

the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Anual Service Charge,

Anual Service Charge, or Administrative Fees or its failure to comply with the Affordable

Housing provisions of the Consent Order. This right shall apply to arearages that are due and

owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there

had been no termination. Furher, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum

Anual Service Charge, the Anual Service Charge, Administrative Fees, or for breach of the

Consent Order or of any covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided for the

recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax

exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified remedy.
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In the event of a Default on the par of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Aricle

IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and

property, in the maner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or

amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to

mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is

pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided

in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to

the Entity (Notice of Termination).

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may afer the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the

Project notify the City that as of a certain date designated in the notice, it relinquishes its status

as a tax exempt Project. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges

and the profit and dividend restrictions shall terminate,

Section 12.3 Final Accounting

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the

Entity or by virte of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the

Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the

provisions of NJ.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any excess Net Profits. For puroses of

rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of

the fiscal year for the Entity.

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project

shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and

conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable

property in the City.
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Section 12.5 Termination Payment

In addition to any other remedies available to the City upon termination whether

voluntar or upon default, the Entity shall pay to the City an amount equal to the difference

between the service charge actually paid and the service charge that would have been due had

each adjustment period provided in Section 4.2 hereof, been of the shortest duration permitted

by law, thereby generating the most accelerated increases, permitted by law.

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the paries hereto or a

dispute arising between the paries in reference to the tenns and provisions as set forth herein,

either pary may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to

settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law.

In the event the Superior Cour shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the paries shall submit the

dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance

with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law. The cost for the arbitration shall be borne equally by the paries. The paries

agree that the Entity may not file an action in Superior Cour or 'with the Arbitration Association

unless the Entity has first paid in full all charges defined in Aricle iv, Section 4.7 as Material

Conditions.

ARTICLE xiv - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to

terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided

herein. Nothng herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any amount which the

City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as par defendant in

any action alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement
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and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq" the Entity shall indemnify and hold the City

harless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees

and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of enforcing this

indemnty) arising out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all statutory or

common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this

indemnfication. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense, counsel to be

selected by the City, subject to the reasonable consent of the Entity. However, the City

maintains the right to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the

expense thereof to be borne by the City.

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by

certified or registered mail, retu receipt requested.

Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

110 First Street Urban Renewal Associates, LLC
c/o BLDG Management Co., Inc.
417 Fifth Avenue, 4th Floor
New York, New York 10016

and

Joseph G. Ragno, Esq.
Waters, McPherson, McNeil, P.C.
300 Lighting Way
Seventh Floor
Secaucus, New Jersey 07096

uness prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the CitY is sent a formal written notice in accordance with ths

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
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When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector

uness prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice

to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Propert's Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severabilty

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a

Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of

this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be

enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the paries shall cooperate with each

other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a maner contemplated

by the paries and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-

execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafed to effectuate the original intent of the

paries and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of ths

Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City,

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State

of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring

construction against the par drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for

both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.
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Section 18.2 Conflcts

The paries agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language

contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevaiL. In the event of confict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevaiL.

Section 18.3 Oral Representations

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are

not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement,

and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the paries and there shall be no

modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties

and delivered to each party.

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council approving

this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.

Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the

City.

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set fort at

length herein:

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;
2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;
5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;
7. Good Faith Estimate ofInitial Rental Schedule and Lease Terms;

8. Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;

9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the paries have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above written.

WITNESS: 110 FIRST STREET URBAN RENEWAL
ASSOCIATES, LLC

BY:

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRNE,
CITY CLERK

JOHN KELLY,
BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR

698951.0
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